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Buildin G1,No 491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Hanot

LIcoct coRPo RATION . JOINT STOCK COMPANY

The Board of management oI LICOGI Corpor aton - Joint Stock ComPany (the 
-CorPoration") Presents this

report together with ihe corporation 's financial ihtements {or the Year ended 31 December 2024

S:TATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member (aPpointed on 26 June 2024)

Member (resigned on 26 June 2024)

Member

Member

Chief Executive Officer (resigned on 16 August 2024)

Chief Executive Officer (appointed on 16 August 2024)

Deputy Chief Executive Officer (resigned on 01 October 2024)

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Head of the Board of SuPervisory
Member
Member

OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORY

THE BOARD

The members of the Board of Directors' Board of Management and Board of Supervisory of the Corporation

during the Year and to the date of this rePort are as follows

The Board of Directors

1 Mr. Dinh Viet Tung

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai

3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh HoP

4. Mr. Nguyen Truong Son

5. Mr. NguYen Danh Quan

6. Mr. Ung Tien Do

The Board of Manaqement

1. Mr. Vu Nguyen Vu

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai

3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh HoP

4. Mr. Nguyen Anh Dung

The Board of SuPervisorv

'1. Mr. Phan Hai Trieu
2. Mrs. Duong Thi Phuong
3. Mrs. Kieu Bich Hoa

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Corporation during the year to the date of this report is:

l.Mr.VuNguyenVUchiefExecutiveofficer(from01January2024to16August2024)
2. Mr. Phan-Thanh Hai Chief Executive Officer (from 16 August 2024)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT' STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Management of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the consolidated- financial

statements, wnicn givL a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation as at 31 .December
2024, and its fina-ncial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in. accordance with

Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulatlons relating to

financial reporting. ln 
-preparing 

these consolidated financial statements, the Board of Management is

required to:

. Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentlyi

. Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements;

. Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Corporation will continue in business; and

. Design and implement an effective internal conlrol system for the purpose of properly preparing and
presenting the consolidated financial statements so as lo minimize errors and frauds.
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LICOGI CORPORATION . JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No. 491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT' STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and that the
consolidated financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for
enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting. The Board of Management is also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Management conflrms that the Corporation has complied with the above requirements in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.

of the Board of Management,

TONG C

LICOGI.CT

Chief Executive Officer
Hanoi, March 31,2025

O
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CPA cONG TTTNHH KIEM roAu ou6c rE
Tang 15, Tda nh. Center Building - Hapulico Complex,
s6 t ttguycn Huy Tudng, Phudng Thanh xuan Trung

Quan lhanh Xuan, Thanh ph6 Ha Noi, ViCt Nam
Oo24.666 42777 G)contact@icpa.vn @www.icpa.vn

No: 033'1 08/2025lBCKT-iCPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: Shareholders, the Board of Directors and Board of Management
LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (the "Corporation"), prepared on March 31, 2025, as set out from page 6 to page 66, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, lne consolidated income statement, the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Board of Manaqe 's ResDonsibilitv

The Board of Management of LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock Company is responsible for the preparation

and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting and for such
internal control as Board of l\4anagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from materaal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditang. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
Corporation's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to desjgn
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Corporation's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by

Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit qualifi ed opinion.

Basis for qua lified oDinion

since 2001

Thinh Liet New Urban Area Project

As at January 1,2024, the Corporation has capitalized interest expenses into the item "Long{erm unflnished
production and business costs" of the Thinh Liet New Urban Area Project with a total accumulated value of
VND 396.8 billion. ln 2024, the Corporation continues to capitalize interest into "Long{erm unfinished
production and business costs" of VND 41 billion. Accordingly, the total value of accumulated capitalized

interest expenses up to December 31,2024 is VND 437.8 billion. Because the Thinh Liet New Urban Area
pro.iect is prolonged, we were unable to collect the necessary information to determine the borrowing costs

capitalized for this project in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 16 - Borrowing Costs
(VAS No 16).

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Debts

As at January 1,2024 and December 31,2024, the Corporation's subsidiaries recorded a number of
receivables that the auditors was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding rights and

obligations, existence, accuracy, and completeness as well as assess the loss of these receivables, as detail:

n
Thdnh vi6n H5ng ki6m toen AGN lniernational

ag )
Dlch vu chuyen nganh : KiAm toen. Kii ben. Tu v6n thu6. Tai chinh
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Basis for qualified

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

oinion (Continued)

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Oebts (Continued)

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company: VND 77.45 billion and VND 76.06 billion;
Wat;r Etectrical System and Machinery lnstallation Licogi Joint Stock Company: VND 5.5 billion and VND

3.4 billion;
Foundation Engineering and construction 20 Joint stock company: vND 87.36 billion and vND 98.18

billion:
Lcogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock Company: VND 24.78 billion and VND 14.44 billion;
Licogi 1O Joint Stock Company: as at January '1, 2024: VND 34.6 billion.

lnventories

The auditors were unable to perform the necessary audit procedures to determine the existence of
invenlories as of January 1, 2024 and December 31, 2024 of lhe Corporation's subsidiaries, specifically as

follows:

- Licogi '15 Joint Stock Company: VND 1'1.4 billion and VND 12.2 billion;
- Fouidation Engineering and ionstruction 20 Joint Stock Company: VND 10.3 billion and VND'10.3 billion.

- Licogi 1O Joint Stock Company: as at January 1, 2024: VND90.1 billion.

Accounts Payable

As at January .1,2024 and December 31,2024, the Corporation's subsidiaries recorded a number of
payables, but ihe auditors could not collect the necessary documents to determine the rights and obligations,

existence, accuracy and completeness of these payables, specifically as follows:

t,

I
"o\

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company: VND 99.05 billion and VND 98.62 billioni

Wat;r Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation Licogi Joint Stock Company: VND 6.7 billion and VND

7 billion;
Foundaiion Engineering and construction 20 Joint Stock company: vND 82.67 billion and vND 79.54

billion;
Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock Company: 20.98 billion VND and 17 4 billion VND;

Licoai 1O Joint Stock Company: as at January 1, 2024: VND 08.6 billion.

Other Matters

As stated in Note lV of the consolidated financial statement disclosures, the financial statements for the fiscal

year ended December 31, 2024, of Licogi 1o Joint stock company, which have not been audited, have been

consolidated into the consolidated finincial statements of the Corporation. We were unable to obtain

irttti"nt 
"ppropriate 

audit evidence regarding the figures of this subsidiary for the fiscal _year 
ended

December ii, 2b24. Therefore, we could not deiermine whether any adjustments to the relevant figures as of

December 31, 2024, arc necessary, specifically as follows:

- Cunent assets: VND 195.6'1 billion;
, Non-current assets: VND 8.15 billion;
, Current liabilities: VND 204.53 billion;

- Equity: Negative VND 0.81 billion,
, Revenue from sales of goods and services in 2024: VND 72.06 billion;

- Cost of goods sold in 2024 VND 71 .81 billionl

- Loss after corporate income tax: VND 6.7 billion.

As of December 31, 2024, Licogi ',15 Joint stock company (a subsidiary of the corporation) had not

recognized interest expenses acco-rding to the overdue debt notice. The total outslanding interest and penalty

int"iE.t ot tt'i. subsidiary at the Joint S-tock Commercial Bank for lnvestment and Development of Vietnam -
ei; S;n erancn were respectively VND 12.06 billion and VND 1.86 billion. For other loans, due to the inability

to collect loan agreements from pievious years that still have outstanding balances.as at December 31, 2024,

we were unable-to fu y estimate the inteiest expenses that the subsidiary should recognize. Therefore, we

could not determine the necessary adjustments related to interest income/(expense) in the consolidated

financial statements of the Corporation for the fiscal year ending Decembet 31 ,2024

5



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Qualified opinion

ln our opinion, except for the matters described in the 'Basis for qualified opinion", the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of, in all material respects, the financial position of Corporation as at 31

December 2024, and jts financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to
consolidated financial reporting.

We would like to draw the readers' attention to Note ll of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements

for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, according to Decision No. 1456/QO-BXD dated November 12,

2O'18, on the actual value of State capital at the time of the transfer of the Parent Company - lnfrastructure

Construction and Development Corporation into Licogi Corporation - JSC, due to certain legal obstacles

related to the opportunity cost under the business cooperation contract for the Thinh Liet New Urban Area

investment project between the Corporalion and Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Business Co., Ltd.,

as well as the actual implementation of the pro.iect, the finalized transfer value does not include lhe

opportunity cost. This opportunity cost will be calculated separately will be recognized separately upon the

direction of the Prime Minister and the Corporation is responsible for directly submitting it to the Enterprise

Support and Development Fund after being officially determined.

We would like to draw the readers' attention lo Note ll of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,

as at December 31, 2024, the accumulated loss of the Corporation was VND 550.94 billion (as at January 1,

2024, it was VND 575.94 billion), short-term debt exceeded short-term assets by VNO 1,271.94 billion (as at

January 1, 2024 was VND 1,335.07 billion). The Corporation's ability to continue operating will depend on the

implementation of the business plan and financial supporl from credit institutions. These events, togelher with

other matters as described in Note ll to the Consolidated Financial Statements, indicate the existence of

material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Corporation's ability to continue as a going

concern.

We draw readers' attention to Note Vll.4 of the consolidated financial slatement disclosures. According to

Appe ate Judgment No. 01/2025/KDTM-PT dated January 3, 2025, regarding the credit contract dispute

between the Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development and Water Electrical System and

Machinery lnstallation Licogi Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary), frcm 2011 to 2023, the subsidiary had

recognized interest expenses based on the agreed-upon interest rates in the debt acknowledgment

documents, ranging from 15ok to 19ok per annum. Under the aforementioned judgment, the interest rate was

adjusted down to 4.86o6tyeat, with no overdue penalty interest applied. Water Electrical System and

Machinery lnstallation Licogi Joint Stock Company (lhe Subsidiary) retrospectively adjusted the financial

statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. Consequently, certain figures in the consolidated

financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, of the Corporation have been

retrospectively adjusted in accordance with prevailing accounting regulations to ensure comparability with the

financial data

qu€ opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters

/,
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Nguyen Thi Thanh Hoa
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Audit Practising Registration Certiflcate
No. 1402-2023-072-1
On behalf of and representing
lnternational Auditing Company Limited
Hanoi, March 31, 2025

Kieu Manh Long
Auditor
Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No.5727-2023-072-01
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CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY lssued under Circular No

B 01 . DNIHN

20212014rfi-BTC
the Ministry of FinanceLlcoGl

Building G1 , No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Dated 22 Decem ber 201 4 issued bY

Ward, Thanh Xuan Distr ict, Ha Noi

""*"ij5tl'"?""*H?ffi*'*
Unit: VND

Opening balance
Closing balanceNotesCode

S
ASSETS

1,941,6 ,611,78

1 I 9,289,679,',| 44

56,289,679,144

63,000,000,000

54,185,007,431

54,185,007,431

1,129,865,686,552

989,279,058,858

92,191 ,866,847

7 ,241,160,010

416,910,008,228

(376,250,805,106)

494,397,715

603,665,931,773

624,914,301 ,622

(21 ,248,369,849)

34,648,306,881

4,436,210,938

27,552,273,467

2,659,822,476

1
2,164,613,683,754

481,377,34',1'513

1 97,356,629,184

284,O?0,712,329

62,300,000,000

62,300,000,000

1,108,046,090,109

908,246,173,489

163,180,631,286

7,291,160,010

417,724,074,353

(388,890,346,744)

494.397,715

479,379,168,966

501,951 ,713,836
(22,572,544,870)

33,511,083,166

3,768,598,247

25,450,679,328

4,291,805,591

v.4a

V.7a
v.8

V,1

Y.2a

v.9

V.6a

,100

110

111

112

120

123

'130

131

132

135

136

137

139

't40
141

149

150

151

152
'153

L Cash and cash equivalents

1. Cash

2. Cash equivalents

ll. Short-term financial investments

1 . Held{o-maturitY investments

lll. Short-term receivables
'1. Short-term trade receivables

2. Short-term advances to suppliers

3. Short-term loan receivables

4. Other short-term receivables

5. Short{erm advances to suppliers

6. Shortage of assets awaiting resolution

lV. lnventories
1. lnventories

2. Provision for devaluation of inventories

V. Other short-term assets
'1. Short{erm prePaid exPenses

2. Value added tax deductibles

3. Taxes and amounts payable to the State

A. CURRENT ASSETS

bud et

.4

1

Klf
,l\

\

7he nola; page,s /2 lo 6i /nlegra/pa// oflhese

Bac

V.10a
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LICOGI CORPORATION -JOINT STOCK COMPANY B 01 - ONiHN
Building Gl, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circular No. 20212014fif -BTC
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

coNSoLtDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTTNUED)
As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

r?i

N.

i1
.1H

T0i

Code
s

Notes Closing balance Opening balance

B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

I. Long-term receivables
1. Other long{erm receivables

ll. Fixed assets
'1. Tangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Acc u m u I ated de p re c i atio n

2. Fixed assets of finance leasing

- Cos,

- Accu mulated depreciation

3. lntangible fixed assets

- Cosl
- Accumulated de preciation

lll. lnvestment properties
- Cos,

- Acc u m u I ated de p re c i atio n

lV. Long-term assets in progreas

L Long-term work in progress

2. Long{erm construction in progress

V. Long-term f inancial investments
1. lnvestments in joinlventures, associates

2. Equity investments in other entities

3. Provision for impairment of long-term

4. Held{o-maturity inveslments

Vl. Other long-term assets
1. Long{erm prepaid expenses

2. Deferred tax assets

200

2'lo
216

220

221

223

224

226

227

,)o
230
231

232

240

241

242

250

254

255

260

261

262

v.7b

v.11

v.13

v.14

v.16
v.17
v.17
v.2b

v.6b

2,452,028,605,201

2,316,653,354
2,316,653,354

236,951,239,111

205 ,410 ,245 ,818
1,265,155,218,612

(1 ,059,744,972,794)
5,494,154,37 4

7,725,170,910

(2,231,016,536)

26,046,838,919

30,131,669,806
(4,084,830,887)

4,020,667,916

4,102,505,616
(81,8s7,700)

1,378,638,451 ,947
1 ,355,580,005,015

23,058,446,932

796,376,091 ,476
763,700,633,868

49,876,625,400

(17 ,201,167 ,792\

33,725,501,397

32,214,865,237

1 ,510,636,160

2,372,659,293,362

1,808,548,034

1,808,648,034

253,508,897,023

221,267,662,042
1 ,317,049,997,332

(1 ,095,782,335,290)
5,907,137,410

6,879,716,365
(972,578,955)

26,334,097,571

30,131,669,806
(3,797,572,235)

4,020,667,916

4,102,505,616
(81,8s7,700)

1,337 ,367,772,726
'1,308,718,438,654

28 ,649 ,334 ,072
746,447,994,576
7 05,218,498,228

59,260,545,400

(19,531 ,049,052)
1,500,000,000

29,505,313,087

28,003,767,837

1,501,545,250

TOTAL ASSETS 270 4,616,642,288,955 4,3 t4,313,905,143

The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an integral paft of these consolidated financial statements I

ASSETS

v.12

v.15



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G'1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

B O,I - DN/HN
lssued under Circulat No. 20212014fiT-BfC

Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of FinanceBac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

\
{

N

E

/t,

opening balanceCodes Notes Closing balanceRESOURCES

3,880,055,141,680

3,276,691,518,474

690,313,542,942

154,688,996,'148

251,386,635,634

70,738,281,338

324,180,028,360

39'1,363,635

222,693,291,505

I ,532,528,456,742

8,499,697,350

21,271,224,820

603,363,623,206

132,778,286,735

577,610,353

68,744,046,075

397.574,529,050

1 ,937 ,671 ,432
1 ,751,479,561

434,258,763,463

434,258,763,463

900,000,000,000

117,558,651

(89,169,818,319)

1 16,707,388,783

2,083,295,470

(s7 5,942,612,450)
(574,653,913,688)

(1,288,698,762)

80,462,951,328

V.21a
V.22a

v.18
v.'l9a
v.10b

v.20

v.19b

v.23

v.21b
v.22b

4,126.710,245,541

3,436,552,705,995

729.872,57 0,544

171 ,551 ,024,537
259,390,124,840

106,167,991 ,962
273.944,236.780

350,000,000

212.658.800,216

I .659,493,543,635

7,132,604,247

1s,991,809,234

690,157,539,546

133,687,377 ,644
367,186,667

68,639,046,075

480.823.582.880

1,935,547,053

4,7 04,799,227

489,932,043,414

489,932,043,414

900,000,000,000
'117,558,651

(89,169,818,319)

143,948,227,766

2,083,295,470

(550,940,633,893)

(610,611 ,367,924)

59,670,734,031

83,893,413,739

341

342

400

410

411

414

416

418

420

421

421a

421b

429

300

310

311

312

313

314

318
1lo

320

C. LIABILITIES

l. Current liabilities
1. Short-term trade payables

2. Short-term advances from customers

3. Taxes and amounts payable to the State
budget

4. Payables to employees

5. Short{erm accrued expenses

6. Short-term uneamed revenue

7. Other current payables

8. Short-term loans and obligations under
finance leases

9. Short{erm provisions

'10. Bonus and welfare funds

ll. Long-term liabilities
1. Long{erm trade payables

2. Long-term uneamed revenue

3. Other longlerm payables

4. Long{erm loans and obligations under
flnance leases

5. Deferred tax liabilities

6. Provisions for long - term liabilities

D. EQUITY

l. Owneds squity
1. Owner's contributed capital

2. Other owner's capital

3. Assets revaluation reserve

4. lnvestment and development fund

5. Other funds

6. Retained earnings

- Retained eamings accumulated to the
pior year end
- Retained eamings of the cunent year

7. Non - conlrollinq interest
4,314,313,905,1434,616,642,288,955440TOTAL RESOURCES

TONG CONC TY
LI

Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer

Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accountant

h Hai
Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2025

The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an integral paft of lhese con solid ated f i n anci al state me nts I

321

330

332
336

338



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi

FORMB02-DN/HN
lssued under Circulat No. 20212014fff -BfC

Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

ITEMS Codes Notes Current year Prior year

2'l

22

23

24

25

26

30

31

32

40

50

51

01

52

1',|

20

70

71

02

10

60

61

62

vt.'10

vt.10

vt.1

vt.2

vt.9

vt.1

vt.1

vt.3

vt.4

vt.5

vt.6

vt.7

vt.8

2,250,355,273,122

660,982,91'l

2,249,694,290,211

1,998,928,693,494

250,765,596,717

122,049,744,915

122,017,306,564

119,151,969,698

60,670,020,61r

52,160,834,222

163,902,735,188

95,404,486,269

21,646,340,072

32,027 ,571,830

(10,381,231,758)

85,023,254,5',t1

1',t,682,771,675

(11,21s,2891.

73.351.698.125

59,670,734,031

13.680.964,094

663

663

2,035,962,622,006

108,879.'.112

2,035,853,742,894

1,8s7,597,058,922

175,256,683,972

't46,4',t3,437,587

135,069,639,377

136,271,756,795

22,930,7 51,383

42,521,230,36'l

140,632,746,464

29,377,256,740

9,834,690,147

23 ,493 ,372,510

(13,658,682,363)

15.718.574,377

9,696,248,097

(773,026,2O11.

6,795,352,48't

(1,288,698,762)

8,084,051,243

(11e)

(11s)

Gross revenue from goods sold and
services rendered
Deductions

Net revenue from goods sold and
services rendered
Cost of sales

Gross profit from goods sold and
services rendered
Financial income

Financial expenses

- ln which: lnterest expense

Share of profiu(loss) in asscociates

Selling expenses

General and administration expenses

Operating profit

Other income

Other expenses

Profit from other activities

Accounting profit before tax

Current corporate income tax
expense
Oeferred corporate income tax
expense
Net profit after corporate income tax

- After-tax profit of the Corporation

- After-tax profit of attributable to
non - controlling interest
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share
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Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accountant

nh Hai
cutive Officer

March 31, 2025

The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an integral patl of these consolidated financial statements 10
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
(Under indirect method)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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Chief Accountant

Unit: VND

Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer
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cutive Officer

31, 2025

Prior yearCurrent yeaCodesITEMS

15,718,574,37

46,673,429,17
(100,600,173)

(12 ,97I ,7 11)

(150,943,732,307)
136,271,756,795
47,606,/t48,160

(280,812,030,,r45)

4,216,792,353
82,472,713,759

1,494,270,725
(157,469,798,589)

(5,938,273,891)
(12,003,694,488)

(320 ,433 ,572,4161

(14,393,783,470)

5 ,227 ,231 ,457

(92,200,000,000)

227,216,306,884

6,803,822,73
152,267,543,66
284,92'.1,121,308

37,907,391,26

'1 ,968,301 ,400,989
(1 ,893,960,910,1 19)

(920,648,500)

73,4',19,842,370

81,369,308,171

12,97 9,711

't19,289,679,14473 347

85,023,254,511

361,650,524,27
'l 19

21,702,512,34

(19,729,352,184)

19,263,591,327

(59,300,000,000)

61,450,000,000

10,425,266,000
117,624,366,061
129,733,871,204

4'1 ,520,955,185
13,220,061,962

(437,138,095)

(1 86,977,558,331)
119,151,969,698
71,50'1,544,930

2,'198,569,953,490
(1 ,987,018,534,567)

(1 ,337 ,278,200),
210,214,',l40,723

,1

(7,863,907,071)

122,962,587,786
104,728,002,585
(3,543,484,709)

(232,129,743,O84)
(17 ,721 ,960 ,8021
(16 ,230 ,527 ,288)

01
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17

20

26
27
30

33

34

40

50
60

61

70

I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Accounting profit befote tax
2. Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Provisions
Foreign exchange (gains)/ losses arising from
translating foreign currency items
(Gains)/losses from investing activities
lnterest expense

3. Operating profit before movements in working
capital
(lncrease)/Decrease in receivables
(lncrease)/Decrease rn inventofl es
(lncrease)/Decrease in payables
(lncrease)/Oecrease in prepaid expenses

lnlerest paid

Corporate income tax Paid
Other cash outflows

Net cash generated by/used in operating

II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1 . Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and

other long-term assels
2. Cash outflow for lending, buytng debt, instruments

of other entities
3. Cash outflow for lending, buying debt, instruments

of other entities
4. Cash recovered from lending, reselling debt

instruments of other entities

5. Cash recovered from investments in other

6. lnterest earned, dividends and proflts received

Net cash generated by/used in investing

III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings
2. Repayment of borrowings
3. Repayment of obligations under finance leases

Net cash generated by/used in financing
Net increase/(decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

0
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P
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The notes set out on pages 12 to 65 are an integral patl of these con sol i d ate d f i n anc i al state me nt s 11
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes are an integral patl of and shoutd be read in conjunction with lhe accomPanying consolidatecl financial statement

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

I
:

\

LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY

L Structure of ownership

LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock Company (hereinafler referred to as'1he Corporation"), formerly

known as the lnfrastructure Development and Construction Corporation, was established under

Decision No. gg8/BXD-TCLD dated November 20, 1995 of the Minister of Construction, a State-owned

enlerprise under the Mjnistry of Construction. The Corporation lransformed its model into a ioint stock

company under Decision No. 2243lQD-l-fg dated December 1 1, 2014 of the Prime Minister approving

the equiiization plan of the lnfrastructure Development and Construction Corporation - One Member

Limited Liabitity Company. According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 0100106440, the third

change on December gt, ZOtS, islued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and lnvestment, the

Corp6ration officially transformed into a joint stock company, changing its name from the lnfrastructure

Development and bonstruction Corpoiation - One Member Limited Liability Company to LICOGI

Corporation - Joint Stock Company with a charter capital of VND 900 billion. The Corporation operates

undlr the Business Regiskation iertificate No. 01OO1OO440, first issued by the Hanoi Department of

Planning and lnvestment on November 24, 2010, amended for the tenth changed on Febtuary ?7,

2025.

Head office of the corporation: Building G1, No. 491 Nguyen Trai street, Thanh xuan Bac ward,

Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City.

2. Field of business

The Corporation operates in many different fields.

3. Operating industry and principal activities

The Corporation's production and business activities include:

- Construction and installation: underground works, irrigation works (dykes, dams, canals, reservoirs,

irrigation systems, pipetines, pumping stations), hydroelectricity, thermal power, plst office, water

sufipty anO drainage,'urban and indrstrial park infrastructure technical works, drilling and blasting

(eirieiprises are onl-y attowed to do business when permitted by competent State agencies);

- lnvesting in and developing projects on housing, urban areas, industrial parks, investing and

developing"technical infrastiuct-ure, investing in the construction of electricity works and trading in

"orrlr"Ll 
electricity; investing and trading in office services, hotels, motels, tourism and

entertainment service!, managi;g and exploiting comprehensive services in new urban areas and

concentrated residential areasi

- Construction and installation and general conlractor for construction and installation of civil,

indusrial and traffic works (roads, railway bridges, road bridges, airports, ports, stations, tunnels);

- Researching the application and transfer of new technologies in the construction field, organizing

training, retrai-ning, fbltering Management staff, specialized technical workers, education and

orientaltion to send Vietnamese workeis and experts to work abroad for a limited Period;

- Manufacturing, trading and importing and exporting mechanical products, materials, machinery,

equipment, raw ilaterials, types of conslruction materials, conslruction technology;

.constructioninvestmentconsultancyincludes:planning,establishmentandappraisalof
construction investment projects, topographic survey' engineering geology, hydrogeology' design'

preparation of total cost estimates foi c6nstruction works, project Management, technical supervision

of construction, bidding consultancy and economic contracts on design, construcfion, installation,

suplry ot materiats andLquipment; testing, quality inspection of works (excluding legal consultancy).

4. Normal production and business cycle

For the corporation's real eslate business activities, the production and business cycle usually lasts

more than 1) months. other activities have a business cycle of no more than 12 months.

12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTEO)
These noles arc an integral part of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial stalefient

I. GENERALINFORMATION(CONTINUED)

5. Business structure

As at December 31,2024,Lhe Corporation has the following affiliated units:

Units Place Main business activities

Construction, foundation, infrastructure

Construction, foundation, infrastructure

Construction materials production

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Head Office

LICOGI Branch No. 1

LICOGI Construction Materials Branch

Subsidiaries

Dong Anh lnveslment Construction
and Building Materials Joint Stock
Company
Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint
Stock Company
Licogi Consulting Joint Stock
Company
Mechanized Construction and
lnstallation Joint Stock Company No
o

Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock
Company
Licogi 10 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Foundation Engineering and
Construction 20 Joint Stock
Company
Water Electrical System and
Machinery lnstallation Licogi Joint
Stock Company
Licogi Urban and Housing One
Member Company Limited
Licogi 2 lnvestment And
Construction One Member
Company Limited
LICOGI General lmport-Export One
Member Company Limited

Place of
incorporation
and operation

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Dong Nai

Ouang Ngai

Da Nang

Thanh Hoa

Hai Duong

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Quang Ninh

Ha Noi

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting power
held
51 .850k

89.06 %

60.00%

51 .00%

64.77%

57 .71%

64.65%

56.33%

92.58%

89.920h

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Main business activities

Manufacturing and trading of
construction materials

Manufacturing and trading of
mechanical products

Construction investment
consulting

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Real Estate Business

Real Estate Business

Labor supply and Management

'13

lnformation about the Subsidiary (direct ownership) as at December 31 , 2024 is as follows:
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Business structure (Continued)

Second-tier Subsidiary

The Corporation has some second-tier subsidiaries indirectly owned consolidated in financial
statements as at December 31, 2024 including:

Place Benefit
ratio

Voting
power
held

Main business
activities

Dong Anh 6 lnvestment and Constructioon
Materials Joint Stock Company
(Subsidiary of Dong Anh lnvestment
Construction and Building Mateials Joint
Stock Company)
Dong Anh 9 Contruction Materials and
lnvestment Development Joint Stock
Conpany (Subsldla ry of Dong Anh lnvestment
Construction and Building Materials Joint
Stock Company)

Licogi 9.2 Joint Stock Company
(Subsidiary of Mechanized Construction and
lnstallation Joint Stock Company No 9)

Hoa Binh

Phu Tho

Dong Nai

28.22% 54.42%

26 .440 51 .00Yo

40.45yo 79.310/o

Production and
trading of
construction
materials

Production and
trading of
construction
materials

Construction,
foundation,
infrastructure

.)6r
T

ilEl
,ui

a*

The Corporation lras assocrafed companies and joint ventures reflected in the Consolidated
Financial Statements using the equity method as of December 31,2024, including:

Associates

Voting
power held

Place Benefit
ratio

Main business
activities

Bac Ha
Company

Hydropower Joint Stock

Licogi 14 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company

Binh Long Conslruction and
lnvestment Joint Stock Company
( Assoc i ate of Mech a n ized
Construction and lnstallation Joint
Stock Company No 9)
Dong Anh 8 Contruction Materials
and lnvestment Development Joint
Stock Conpany (Associate of Dong
Anh lnvestment Construction and
Building Mateials Joint Stock
Company)

Lao Cai 41 .O1% 41 .01%

Phu Tho 18.49o/o 18.49%

Ha Noi 22.62% 22.62%

Binh Phuoc 20.40% 40.00%

Hung Yen 25.27% 48.73%

14

Name

Name

Electricity
production and
kading
Construction,
foundation,
infrastructure
Construction,
foundation,
infrastructure

Production and
trading of
construction
materials

Production and
trading of
construction
materials
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I. GENERALINFORMATION(CONTINUED)

5. Business structure (Continued)

Joint venture company

Name

Thang Long lndustrial Park Company
Limiled (Joint venture company of Dong
Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint Stock
Company)
Ha Nam Construction Materials
Production Joint Venture Company
(Joint venture company of Licogi 15

Joint Stock Company)

Ha Noi 37 .41o/o 4?.00%

Ha Nam 48.48% 48.48%

Place
Voting power

held
Main business

activities

Real Estate
Business

Production and
trading of
construclion
materials

11

6 Comparative figures

The comparative figures are data on the audited Consolidated financial slatements for year ended 31

December 2023.

II. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR

Accounting convention

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND), are
prepared undei the historical cost convention and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting.

rG

!H
,IT

t'c

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended lo present the financial position.

resulls of operitions and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally

accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

During the period of equitization from January 1, 2013 to December 3'1, 2015, the Corporation
prepalred financial slatements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vielnamese
Enterprise Accounting Regime and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of

financial statements lnd linancial handling as prescribed in Decree No. 116/201s/ND-CP dated

November 1.1, 2015 of the Government on converting 'loo% state-owned enterprises into Joint stock
companies and circular No. 127 t2}14fir -BCT dated September 5, 2014 ofthe Ministry of Finance on

guidance on financial handling and determining enterprise value when converting 100% State-owned

6nterprises into Joint Stock Companies. However, due to some problems related to legal regulations

related to the opportunity cost under the business cooperation contract for the Thinh Liet New Urban

Area construction investment project between the corporation - Parent company and Khu Dong Real

Estate lnvestment and Trading Company Limited and the actual situation of projecl implementation,

the final setflement value doei not include opportunity cost. This opportunity cost will be calculated

separately after receiving instructions from the Prime Minister and the corporation - Parent company
is iesponiible for payingidirectly to the Enterprise Support and Development Fund after being officially

determined.

Going concern assumption

As at December 91, 2024, the accumulated Ioss of the corporation was vND 550.94 billion (as at

January.1, 2024, was VND 575.94 billion), short{erm debt exceeded short-term assets by vND

1,271.94 billion (as at January 1, 2024, was VNO 1,335.07 billion). The Corporation's ability to continue

aia going concern depends on its revenue sources and funding sources from its partners. The Board

of Dirlctois of the Corporation believes that the Corporation will be able to mobilize capital from credit

institutions and other sources to settle due debts/obligations pay debts as they fall due (if necessary)

and maintain the necessary working capital to continue operations in lhe near future'

15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
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II. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR (CONTINUED)

Going concern assumption (Continued)

The Board of Management of the Corporation has carefully assessed the business plan and cash flow
plan, as well as the ability to balance cash sources to pay debts and financial obligations as they fall
due. The Board of Management believed that it was appropriate for the consolidated financial
statements of the Corporation for the year ended 31 December 2024 to be prepared on a going
concern basis.

Fiscal year

The company's financial year begins from 01 January to 31 December

III. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM APPLIED

The Corporation applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the Accounting regime for enterprises
promulgated under the Circular No. 20012U4fiT-BTC daled 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance
guiding the accounting regime for enterprises, Circular No. 53/2016ffT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by
Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles of Circular No. 200/2014iTT-BTC,
Circular No.20212014ITT-BTC ("Crcular 202") guiding on preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements and Circular guiding the implementation of accounting standards of the Ministry of
Finance in the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation has fully complied with the requirements of Vietnamese accounting standards in
preparing and presenting consolidated financial statements.

IV. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Corporation in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Estimates

l3

I'
,l

rA

T

3

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting
requires Board of Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Although
these accounting estimates are based on the Board of Management's best knowledge, actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Corporation and the
financial statements of the companies controlled by the Corporation (subsidiaries) up to 31 December
each year. control is achieved where the corporation has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an investee enterprise so as to oblain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated

income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the

accounting policies used in line with those used by the Corporation.

lntragroup transactions and balances are eliminated in full on consolidation.

to
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tv. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

- Currenl assets: VND 195.6'l billion;
- Non-current assets: VND 8.15 billion;
- Current liabilities: VND 204.53 billion;
- Equity. Negative VND 0.81 billion;
- Revenue from sales of goods and services in 2024: VND 72.06 billion;
- Cost of goods sold in 2024: VND 71.81 billion;
- Loss after corporate income tax: VND 6.7 billion.

The Board of Management of the corporation believee that any adiustments (if any) related to the
figures in the Financial Statements of Licogi 10 Joint Stock Company will not have a malerial impact on

th! Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation. The Consolidated Financial Statements of
the Corporation have not included any adjustments related to this matter.

Business combinations

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsadiary are measured at their

fair values at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the

identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition

below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is credited to profit and loss in the period of

acquisition.The non-controlling interests are initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders'

proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised

lnvestments in associates

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those non-controlling interests at the date of the
original business combination (see below) and the non-controlling interests' share of changes in equity

since the date of the combination. Losses in subsidiaries are respectively attributed to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Board of Management of the Corporation has decided to consolidate the unaudited financial
statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, of Licogi 10 Joint Stock Company. The
financiat figures of this subsidiary for the fiscal year ended December 3'1, 2024, are as follows:

.\

/\

I

Q1

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are Subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

1'/

An associate is an entity over which the Corporation has significant influence and that is neither a

subsidiary nor an interest in joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investor but not control or ioint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using

the equity method of accounting. lnterests in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as

adjustbd'by post-acquisition changes in the Corporation's share of the net assets of the associate.

Loises of in associite in excess of the Corporation 's interest in that associate (which includes any

long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Corporation 's net investment in the associate)

are not recognised.

ln the event that a member company of the Corporation conducts a transaction with an affiliated

company of the corporation, unrealized gains/losses corresponding to the corporation's capital

contribution to the associate company are eliminated from the consolidaled financial slatements.
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lv. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial investments

H el d-to- matu ri ty i nvestmenls

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at
acquisition price plus directly attributable transaction costs. Post-acquisition interest income from held-
to-maturity investments is recognised in the income statement on accrual basis. Pre-acquisition
interest is deducted from the cost of such investments at the acquisltion date.

When there is solid evidence that part or all of the investment may not be recoverable and the amount
of loss can be reliably delermined, the loss is recorded in financial expenses during the year and
reduced. Direct deduction of investment value.

Held{o-maturlty investments are measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts relating to held{o-maturity inveslments is made in accordance with
prevailing accounting regulations.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts

relating to loan receivables is made in accordance with prevailing accounting regulations.

Equity investments in other entities

Equity investments in other entities represent the Corporation's investments in ordinary shares of the

entities over which the Corporation has no control, ioint control, or signiflcant influence.

\

\
I/t

,l

Receivables

Receivables represent the amounts recoverable from customers or olher debtors and are stated at

book value less provision for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts is set aside for each receivable based on lhe time of overdue payment of
principal according to the original debt commitment (not taking into account debt extension between

barties) or based on the level of possible loss according to the Company's assessment. The ditference
between the provision to be set up at the end of this fiscal year and the provision set up at the end of
the previous fiscal year is recorded as an increase or decrease in business management expenses in

the iscal year. Wh;n receivables are determined to be uncollectibie, they will be written off.

lnventories

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and

where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using lhe specific identification

method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

lnventories value are determined according to the weighted average method. lnventories are

accounted for using the regular declaration method.

18

Held{o-maturity investments comprise investmenls that the Corporation has the positive intent or
ability to hold to maturity, including term deposits (commercial bills), bonds, preference shares which
the issuer shall redeem at a certain date in the future, loans held to maturity to earn periodic interest
and other held{o-maturity investments.

Equity investments in other entities are carried at cost less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are an integral pad of and should be rcad in conjunctioh with the accompanying cohsolidated financial statement

rv. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

lnventories (Continued)

The evaluation of necessary provision for inventory obsolescence follows current prevailing accounting
regulations which allow provisions to be made for obsolete, damaged, or sub-standard inventories and
for those which have costs higher than net realisable values as at the balance sheet date.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The costs of purchased tangible fixed assets comprise their purchase prices and any directly

attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working conditions and locations for their intended use.

The costs of tangible fixed assets formed from construclion investment by contractual mode or self-

construction or self-generating process are the settled costs of the invested construction proiects in

accordance with the prevailing State's regulations on investment and construction Management,

directly-related expenses and registration fee (if any). ln the event the construction project has been

completed and put into use but the settled costs thereof have not been approved, the cost of tangible

fixed assets is recognised at the estimated cost based on the actual cost incurred. The estimated cost

will be adjusted according to the settled costs approved by competent authorities.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straighlline method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

Years

05-30
05-10
06 - 10

Tangible fixed assets are revalued in accordance with the state's decisions or when state-owned

enterprises are equitised. The cost and accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets are adjusted

based on the revaluation value approved by competent authorilies as regulated.

Loss or gain resulting from sales and disposals of tangible fixed assets is the difference between profit

from sales or disposals of assets and their residual values and is recognised in the income statement.

lntangible assets and amortisation

Land use rights: intangible fixed assets represent the value of land use rights. Land use rights are

allocated using the straight-line method based on the land lot's useful lifa.

Computer software: intangible fixed assets represent the value of computer software and are stated at

cost less accumulated ainortization. Computer software is allocated using the straight-line method

based on the useful life 05 Years.

lnvestment properties

lnvestment properties are composed of land use rights, buildings and structures held .by the

Corporation io earn rentals or for capital appreciation. Investment properties held to earn rentals are

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation while investment properties held for capital appreciation

are Stated at cost less impairment ioss. The costs of purchased investment properties comprise their

purchase prices and any directly attributable expenditures, such as professional fees for legal services,

property tiansfer taxes and other related transaction costs. The costs of self-constructed investment

properties are the finally accounted construction or directly attrjbutable costs of the properties.

Buildings and structures
Machinery, equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are an integral paft of and should be read in conjunction wilh the acconpanying consolidated financial statement

IV, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Conversion of use between investment property and owner-occupied property or inventory does not

change the carrying amount of the converted asset and does not change the cost of the property.

assets in the determination of value or in preparing the financial statements.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental and administrative purposes or for other

purposes are carried at cost. The cost includes any costs that are necessary to form the asset

including construction cost, equipment cost, other directly attributable costs in accordance with the

Corporation's accounting policy. Such costs will be included in the estimated costs of the fixed assets

(if setfled costs have not been approved) when they are put into use. According to the state's

regulations on investment and construction Management, the settled costs of completed construction

projects are subject to approval by appropriate level of competent authorities. The final costs of these

completed conslruction projects may vary depending on the final approval by competent authorities.

Prepayments

prepaid expenses include actual expenses that have been incurred but are related to the results of
production and business activities of many accounting periods. Prepaid expenses include the value of

iools, instruments, small components issued for use, other repair costs and are considered to have the
potential to bring future economic benefits to the Corporation. These costs are capitalized in the form

of prepayments-and allocated to the lncome Statement, using the straight-line method in accordance
with current accounting regulations.

Accrued expenses

payables for goods and services received from sellers or provided to the Company during the rep-orting

period but no'i actually paid because the supplier has not issued invoices or does not have sufficient

iecords, documents, or other documents Such as loan interest payable, other production and business

expenses... are recorded in production and business expenses of the reporting period

Payable provisions

Payable provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation as a result of a past

event, and it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are

measured at the Management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation as at

the balance sheet date.

lnvestment properties (Continued)

lnvestment real estate at the Corporation is investment real estate held for appreciation, the
Corporation does not depreciate. ln case there is solid evidence that investment real estate held for
appreciation has decreased in value compared to market value and the decrease in value can be
determined reliably, the investment real estate held for appreciation is recorded as a decrease in

original cost and the loss is recorded in cost of goods sold.

The transfer from owner-occupied real estate to investment real estate or from investment real estate
to owner-occupied real estate or inventory is only possible when there is a change in purpose of use

Owner-occupied real estate converts to investment property when the owner ends use of the property

and when another party leases it for operation. lnvestment property converts to owner-occupied
property when the owner begins to use the property. lnvestment real estate converts to inventory when
the owner begins to develop it for sale. lnventories are converted into investment properties when the
owner begins leasing them to another party. Construction real estate is converted into investment real

estate at the end of the construction phase and is handed over for investment

I
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IV. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue includes revenue received in advance such as: the amount of money that
customers have paid in advance for one or more fiscal years for labor export services.

Unearned revenue is transferred to Sales and Service Revenue at the amount determined in
accordance with each fiscal year.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all five (5) following conditions are satisfied

(a) The Corporation has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

(b) The Corporation retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with; ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is

entitled to return the products or goods, purchased under specific condjtions, revenue is
recognized only when those specific condilions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to
pay return products and goods (except for cases where customers have the right to return goods
in the form of exchange for other goods or services);

(d) The Corporation has obtained or will receive economic benefits from the sale transaction; and
(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of such
transactions can be measured reliably. Where a transaction involving the rendering of services is
attributable to several periods, revenue is recognised in each period by reference to the percentage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction
can be measured reliably when all four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; When the contract stipulates that the buyer is

entitled to return the products or goods, purchased under specific conditions, revenue is

recognized only when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to
pay return products and goods;

(b) lt is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Corporation;

(c) The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured
reliably; and

(d) The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

lnterest income is recognized on an accrual basis, determined on the balance of the deposit account
and the interest rate applied.

lnterest from investments is recognized when the Corporation has the right to receive the profit.

Dividends and protits distributed

,
d

..c

?)\

Dividends and distributed profits are recognized when the Corporation is entitled to receive dividends
or profits from capital contribution. Dividends received by shares are only tracked for the number of
additional shares, not the value of shares received.

21



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

FORMB09-DN/HN
lssued under Circulat No. 2OZl201 4fif -Bf C

Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED}
These notes arc an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statement

IV. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Construction contract

Revenue and costs of construction contracts are recognised as follows

When the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliablv:

. For construction contracts that stipulate that the contractor is paid according to the planned
schedule, revenue and costs related to the contract are recognized in proportion to the work
completed by the Corporation self-determined at the end of the financial year.

. For construction contracts where the contractor is paid according to the value of the volume
performed, the revenue and costs related to the contract are recognized in proportion to the
completed work confirmed by the customer and is reflected on the invoice issued.

lncreases and decreases in construction and installation volume, compensation and other revenues
are recognised as revenue only when agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably

Revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred for which recovery is reasonably
certain.

. Contract costs are recognised as expenses only when incurred.

The difference between the cumulative total revenue of a construction contract recognised and the
cumulative amount recorded on invoices for payment according to the planned progress of the conlract
is recognised as receivable or payable according to the planned progress of the construction contracts.

Foreign currencies

Transactions arising in foreign currencies ale translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction
date. The balances of monetary items denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date
are retranslated at the exchange rates on the same date.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of these accounts are recognised in the income
stalement. Exchange differences due to revaluation of monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date after netting for the increase and decrease in difference are
recognized in financial income or as financial expenses.

The exchange rate used to convert transactions arising in foreign currencies is the actual exchange
rate at the time of transaction. The actual exchange rate for transactions in foreign currencies is
determined as follows:

T
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lv. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Actual exchange rate when buying and selling foreign currencies (foreign currency trading spot
contracts, forward contracts, futures contracts, options contracts, swap contracts): exchange rate
signed in the contract. buying and selling foreign currency between lhe Corporation and the bank.

lf the contract does not specify the payment rate

For capital contributjons or capital contributions: foreign currency buying rate of the bank where the
Corporation opens an account to receive capital from investors at the date of capital contribution.
For receivables: the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation appoints the
customer to pay at the tlme of transaction.
For liabilities: the selling rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation is expected to transact
at the time the transaction arises.
For purchases of assets or expenses that are immediately paid in foreign currencies (not through
accounts payable): the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation makes payment.

The exchange rate used to re-evaluate the balance of monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies at the end of the fiscal year is determined according to the following principles:

. For foreign currency deposits at banks: foreign currency buying rate of the bank where the
Corporation opens a foreign currency account.

For foreign currency items classified as other assets: foreign cunency buying rate of the Bank with
which the Corporation regularly transacts.

For foreign currency items classified as liabilities: foreign currency selling rate of the Bank with
which the Corporation regularly transacts.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses when incurred. ln cases where borrowing costs are
directly related to the investment in construction or production of unfinished assets, which require a
sufficient period of time (ove|l2 months) to be put to use for the intended purpose or sale, these
borrowing costs are capitalized. For separate loans serving the construction of fixed assets, investment
real estate, borrowing interest is capitalized even if the construction period is less than 12 months.
lncome arising from temporary investment of loans is recorded as a reduction in the original cost of
related assets.

For general loans used for the purpose of investment in construction or production of unfinished
assets, capitalized borrowing costs are determined according to the capitalization rate for the weighted
average cumulative costs incurred for the investment in basic construction or production of that asset.
The capitalization rale is calculated at the weighted average interest rate of the borrowings not yet paid
during the year, except for specific borrowings serving the purpose of forming a specific asset.

lncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years (including loss carried forward, if any) and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible.

]G
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Borrowing costs include interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings.

Taxation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are an integral pai of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated linancial statement

tv. SUMMARY OF StGNtFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on significant differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit

and are accounted for using balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally

recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Corporation intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

The determination of the tax currently payable is based on the current interpretation of tax regulations.
However, these regulations are subject to periodic variation and their ultimate determination depends

on the results of the tax authorities' examinations.

Other taxes are paid in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam

J

TY
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,Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss after tax distributed to shareholders
owning ordin;ry shares of the Corporation (after adjusting for the appropriation of bonus and welfare
funds) by weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year'

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the after-tax profit (or loss) to holders 
-of 

the
Corporation 'siommon shares (after adjusting for dividends on convertible preferred shares) for the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the year and the weighted average

number of ordinary shares to be issued in the event that all potential shares of common stock have an

impairments are converted into common shares.

Related parties

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are

contr;lled by, or under common control with, the Corporation, including holding comparlie:,
subsidiaries ind fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Corporation. Associales and individuals

owning, direcfly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the corporation that gives-_them

signifiJant influLnce over the enterprises, key Management personnel, including directors and officers

oithe Corporation and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated

with these individuals also constitute related parties.

ln considering each related party relationship, attention is paid to the nature of the relationship, not the

legal form.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTEO)
These notes are an inleg@l paft ol and should be rcad in conjunctioh with the accompanying consolidaled financial statement

V. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATEO BALANCE SHEET

I. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Closing balance
VND

Opening balance

VND

a) Short - term
Term deposits at banks (i)

b) Long - term
Bonds

a) Short-term trade receivables

Vinhomes Joint Stock Company

Prolect Management Board of Power 2 - Branch of
Vietnam Electricity Group
Paciflc Corporation Joint Stock Company

Linh Phong lnvestment, Development and Construction

Joint Stock Company - C.O.N.l.C
MIK Group Viet Nam Joint Stock Company
Dakdrinh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

lnveslment and Construction Joint Stock Company No.8

Xuan Cau lnvestment Joint Stock Company

PROESMMA SA DE CV

Northern Food Joint Stock ComPanY

Others

Total

b) Other receivables from related parties
(Details stated in Note Vll.l)

481 ,377,341 ,513 1 19,289,679,1/r4

2,776,524,923
194,580,104,261

284,020,712.329

4,195,567,376

52,094,111,768

63,000,000,000

(') Term deposits at banks with a maturity of no more than 3 months, with interest rates specified in each

term deposit contract.

2. HELD-TO-MATURITYINVESTMENTS

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

\

\
62,300,000,000

62,300,000,000

54,18s,007,431

54,185,007,431
't,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

/t
v

62,300,000,000 55,685,007,431

(i) Bank deposits with a term of more than 3 months up to 1 year, with interest rates specified in each

lerm deposil contract.

3. SHORT.TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

150,902,438,r 60

71,693,737 ,255

44,598,299,566

29,493,292,37 4

63,141,020,678

43,035,960,028

30.000,000,000

15,662,726,396

764,594,506,405

908,245,173,489 989,279,058,858

25

Cash on hand

Cash in bank

Cash equivalents (-)

Tota I

Total

25,971,260,268
23,885,940,003

21,261,594,839

19,671 ,857,448
19,131,202,332

15,662,726,396

485,973,824,848

8,673,591,895
17,409,874,008

21 ,261,594,839
25,499,784,609

30,954,019,246 13,643,596,369



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTEO)
These noles arc an inlegral paft ol and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated fihancial statemeht

INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(coNTtNUED)

4. SHORT-TERM ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS
Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

a) Short-term advances to suppliers
Cong Tien lndustrial Engineering Limited Company

DISA (Changzhou) Machinery Limited

Construction Joint Stock Company 203

Wuyangbc (Tsingdao) lntelligent Equipment Co.,LTD

VNC Crane and lndustrial Structure Manufacturing

Others

Total

b) Short-term advances to suppliers from related
parties (Detals slated in Note Vll.1)

5. SHORT-TERM LOAN RECEIVABLE

(D

(ii)

163,180,631,286 92,191,856,847

6,829,116,000

3,485,348,840

81 ,877 ,402,007

3,695,789,577 3,695,789,577

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

6

a) Loan receivables
Dong Anh S lnvestment and Construction Malerials Joint 4,291,160,010 5,041,160,010

Stock Company (i)

19/5 Doan Hung Joint Stock Company (ii) 3,000,000,000 2,200,000,000

Total 7,291,160,010 7,241,160,010

b) Loan receivables from related parties 4,29'1,160,010 5,041,160,0'10
(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

Short{erm loan to support capital borrowing between Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary )and Dong Anh I lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint
Stock Company (an associate). The loan has no collateral, with a loan term ot 12 months, interest rate
of 9%ol year.

Short{erm loan to support capital borrowing between Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company (subsidiary) and 19/5 Doan Hung Joint Stock Company. The loan has no
collateral, with a loan term of 12 months, interest rate of 4%/year.

PREPAID EXPENSES
closing balance Opening balance

VND VND

a) Current
Tools and dies issued for consumption

Fixed asset repair costs

Others

Total

b) Non-current
Tools and dies issued for consumption

Fixed asset repair costs

Land rent

Others

3,768,598,247 4,436,210,938

28,003,767,837

3,399,123,622
177 ,131 ,866
192,342,759

3,576,503,877
521 ,301 ,412
338,405,649

8,774,436,687

8,549,000,179

4,059,213,'r89

10,832,215,182

1 0,313,467,557

5,660,214,871

4,169,663,841

7,860,42'1,568

Total 32,214,865,237
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16,482,898,187

8,292,241 ,620
6,829,116,000

5 ,226 ,121 ,891
3,640,388,677

122,709,864,911
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GONTINUTED)
These notes are an integAl paft ol and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statement

INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(coNTTNUED)

7. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

a) Other short-term receivables
Receivable from equitization

Dividends and prolits receivable

Receivable interest on deposits and loans

Receivable from employees

Advance

Deposits and mortgages

Receivable from Thinh Liet Urban Area Project
Management Board (i)

Other receivables of COMETCO when merging into
Licogi 2

Receivables from Dung Quat Shipbuilding lndustry
Factory
Receivable from Ha Long City People's Committee for
land acquisition support for the new urban area project

Nam Ga Ha Long (ii)

Others

3,628,215,586

25,496,220,371

25,493,403,949

59,891,340,790

98,608,172,871 92,794,321,131

Total
b) Other long-term receivables
Long-term deposits and mortgages

Total

c) Other receivables from related parties
(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

417,724,074,353 416,910,008,228

2,316,653,354 1,808,648,034

2,316,653,354 1,808,648,034

3,795,964,577 4,456,010,455

LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

(i)

(ii)

FORMB09-DN/HN
lssued under Circular No.20212014tTI-Bf C

3,628,215,586

688,890,250

1,146,258,288

2,672,948,504

144,097,519,146

99,467,946

55,901,636,652

25,496,220,371

25,493,403,949

59,891,340,790

'I,361,798,362

2,77I,279,854
't 48,718,264,613

792,663,000

55,955,500,572

I

{
s

This is an advance payment to the Management Board of Thinh Liet New Urban Area Project during
the project implementation. This project was originally implemented by the Corporation - Parent

Company but then was transferred to the subsidiary - Licogi Housing and Urban Development
Company Limited from July 20, 2016. The Board of Management assessed that the recovery possibility

of this advance payment was low, so made a 100% provision for long-outstanding advances.

This is the compensation payment for site clearance of the Nam Ga Ha Long New Urban Area prolect,

made on behalf of the Ha Long City People's Committee by the subsidiary - Licogi 2 lnvestment And
Construction One Member Company Limited .
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM B 09 - DN/HN
Building Gl, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circulat No.20212014fif -BTC
Nam Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 20'14 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTEO)
These notes arc an integtal pai of dnd should be rcad in conjunction with lhe accompanying consolidated financial statemenl

V. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIOATED BALANCE SHEET
(coNrNUED)

12. FINANGE LEASE ASSETS

Motor, Construction Total
Vehicles machinery

equipment
VNO VND VND

COST

Opening balance

Additions

Closing balance

6,879,716,365

845,454,545

6,879,716,365 845,454,545 7,725,170,910

6,879,716,365

845,454,545

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Closing balance

NET BOOK VALUE

Opening balance

Closing balance

COST
Opening balance

closing balance

Closing balance

NET BOOK VALUE
Opening balance

972,578,955

1,146,619,400 1 '1 
1 ,81 8,1 8'l

972,578,955

1,258,437,581

1't1,818,181 2,23'l ,016,536

5,907,137,410 5,907J 37,410

4,760,518,010 733,636,364 5,494,154,37 4

13. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land use

rig hts
VND

Computer
softwa re

VND

Total

VND

28,769,669,806 1,362,000,000 30,131,669,806

769 669 806 362 000 000 30, '131,669,8061

AGCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance
Charge for the year

2,839,935,394
132,558,648

957,636,841
154,700,004

3,797,572,235
287 ,258,652

25,929,734,412 404,363, t 59 _____?9,M992821

1 1'12,336 845

crosins barance 
---ElsTllSlS! -----21986-11-9!-The remaining value of intangible fixed assets used as collaleral for loans as

was VND 6,197,261,635.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

------4,q$-,!!!f1g
at December 31, 2024

The corporation,s investment real estate is two apartments at 81/6 Vo Van Ngan, Linh Chieu ward,
Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, purchased for price increase to sell with original cost and accumulaled

depreciation of VND 2,745,140354 and VND 81,837,700 respectively and the Corporation ceased

depreciating this asset since 2015. ln 2021, the original cost of the Corporation's investment real estate

increased Juring the year is an apartment at Lane 91, Dai Mo Street, Dai Mo Ward, Nam Tu Liem

District, Hanoi City wiin tne purpose of price increase to sell with original cost of VND '1,357,365,162

and the Corporation has not recognized depreciation (for this assets).

According to Accounting standard 05, the fair value of investment property as at December 31,2024,

must be lisclosed. However, the Corporation has not yet determined this fair value; therefore, the fair

value of investment property as of the financial year-end has not been presented in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements. To determine this fair value, the Corporation will need to engage an

independent consulting firm to assess the fair value of the investment property. currently, the

Corporation has not yet engaged a suitable consulting firm to carry out this assessment'

32

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

2.119,198,355

\
\2

)i

9

28,

2,97 2,494,O42 4,084,830,887

14.
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

FORM B09-DNiHN
lssued under Circulat No. 2O212O14fif-BTC

Nam Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the lVIinistry of Finance

15. LONG-TERM WORK lN PROGRESS (CONTTNUED)

b) Long-term construction in progress

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

Compensation, support and consulting costs for
agricultural land of Dong Anh lnvestment Construction
and Building Materials JSC (i)

Head office and Office for rent at Lot E7, Pham Hung
Street (ii)

Other

7,084,709,941 7,570,359,144

9,671,801,536

6,301,935,455

9,671,801,536

11,407,173,392

Total 23,058,446,932 28,649,334,072

(i) lncluding expenses related to the compensation and land clearance process for Lot 2, with an area of
14,333 m', located in Uy No Commune, Dong Anh District. (According to the land use right certificate
No. BB 916065 issued by the People's Committee of Hanoi City). ln Which: compensation and support
costs for agricultural land consultancy amount to VND 5,029,072,745, construction and land leveling
costs amount to VND 1,8'10,364,739, and other expenses lotal VND 245,272,727.

(ii) The project was approved by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Architecture for the overall site
planning design and construction design plan. Additionally, an official document introducing the
location of Lot EO - Pham Hung (8,450 m'?) was issued for the Corporation to implement the project
dated 3 January, 2007.

The Licogi Corporation - Parent Company placed a land deposit of VND 8,450,000,000 at a rate of
VND 1,000,000/m'for Lot E6 - Pham Hung, according to Official Letter No. 2618/KH&OT-DT dated 13

December, 2006.

On August 10,2007, the Hanoi Department of Planning and Architecture adjusted and rearranged the
project construction location from lot EO to lot E7 (area of about 6,500 m2) and was approved by the
Hanoi People's Committee to study and establish a project to build an office headquarters in the new
urban area of Cau Giay according to Official Dispatch No. '1g87/QD-UBND dated November 1 1 , 2008

On July 10, 2023, the Hanoi People's Committee issued Notification No. 320/TB-VP on the results of
the inspection and review of off-budget investment projects using land that have been delayed in Cau
Giay District. Accordingly, the City People's Committee decided to suspend the previously approved
investment plans for the mentioned land plots in order to carry out investment policy decisions, land

allocation, and land leasing in accordance with the current legal regulations on bidding, investment,
and land management.

On February 28, 2024,:.he Hanoi People's Committee issued Notification No. 78/TB-VP regarding the
report and proposed solutions to address outstanding issues related to 20 investment projects that
have not been allocated or leased land by the State in the Headquarters Area of General Corporations
within the Cau Giay New Urban Area, Hanoi. Accordingly, the City People's Committee agreed on the
proposed plan to carry out procedures for terminating the implementation of Decision No. 1987/QD-
UBND dated November 11, 2008, to initiate the land recovery process as a basis for organizing the
auction of land use rights in accordance with land law regulations. The Department of Finance was
assigned to take the lead and provide recommendations to the City People's Committee on resolving
the rights and interests of relevant stakeholders.

As at now, the Corporation is still working with relevant authorities to complete the necessary legal
procedures and recover the expenses it has incurred.

/(
tl

\
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

FORMB09-ON/HN
lssued under Circular No. 20212014fif -BfC

Nam Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Minist ry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLTDATED FtNANCtAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUTED)
These notes are an integral paft ot and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated linanciat statement

V. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED EALANCE SHEET
(coNTTNUED)

20. SHORT.TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Closing balance Opening balance
VND VND

lnterest expense
Construction and other expenses payable

- Suoi Chan 2 Hydropower Project

- National University Project
- Ban Chat Hydroelectic Project

- Project 20 Cong Hoa

- Accured expenses for other projects and other items

Total

21. OTHER PAYABLES

a) Other short-term payables

Surplus assets awaiting resolution
Union funds
Social insurance, health insurance, unemployment
insurance
Dividends, proflts payable
Loan inlerest payable to the Bank for lnvestment and
Development of Vietnam
Binh Long Construction Investment Joint Stock Company

Xuan Cau lnvestment Joint Stock Company (loan
interest expenses)
Thanh Binh Company Limited

Others

Total

b) Other long-term payables

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited (i)

Long-term deposits and mortgages

Others

273,944,2J6,T50 324,r80;028,360

242,489,97 4,561

8'l,690,053,799
26,794,598,660

4,704,207,944

7,343,716,979

6,823,705,099

36,023,825,117

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND rY

1N

re
-- c'b

68,714,425
6,407,570,336

38,555,778,987

4,4'13,655,619
7,213,386,075

6,470,625,000

2,356,712,329

2,500,000,000

144,672,357,445

68,714/25
5,272,553,807

37,774,909,830

5,591,134,240
7,213,386,075

2,500,000,000

154,850,983,538

212,658,800,216 222,593,291,505

60,000,000,000 60,000,000,000

1,080,000,000

7,559,046,075

1 ,185,000,000
7,559,046,075

(i)

Total 68,63S,046,075 68,744,046,075

c) Other payables from related parties
(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

66,470,625,000 68,627,500,000

On September 25, 2014,(he Corporation - Parent Company signed the principle business cooperation
contract for the Thinh Liet New Urban Area project with Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited, which is now a major shareholder of the Corporation - Parent Company. This is a
deposit from Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading Company Limited to the Corporation -
Parent Company for the execution of the business cooperation agreement for the Thinh Liet New
Urban Area project.

39

169,662,042,078

104,282,194,702

26,794,598,66Q

4,704,207,944

7,343,716,979

6,823,705,099

58,615,966,020

8,627,500,000

794,109,590
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LICOGI CORPORATION -JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM B 09- DN/HN
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circular No. zozlzo14fif-Bfc
Nam Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes arc an integrcl paft of and should be read ih conjunction with the accompanying consolidaled financial statement

INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(coNTTNUED)

23. OWNER'S EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Details of owneds investment capital

Ratio
v"t

Closing balance
VND

Ratio
(%t

40.7\YoState Capotal and lnvestment
Corporation (SCIC)
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment
and Trading Company Limited

Gia Cuong lnvestmenl Company
Limited
Capital contributions of other
shareholders
Total

35.00%

19.24v,

5.05%

40.71Yo

35.00%

19.240k

5.05%

366,406,910,000

3'15,000,000,000

173,128,880,000

45,464,210,000

366,406,910,000

315,000,000,000

'173,128,880,000

45 ,464 ,210 ,000

100.00% 900,00 0,000,000 100.00% 900,000,000,000

T'
H

JA

T

a

Shares

Closing balance

Shares

Opening balance

Shares

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000
'10,000

24, BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Segments by Geography

Geographical Segments a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing products

or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns lhat are
different from those of components operating in other economic environments.

The Corporation is headquartered at Building Gl, 491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan Bac Ward,
Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi, and generates all of its revenue and assets within the territory of Vietnam.
Therefore, the Company is not required to prepare geographical segment reports in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 28 - Segment reporting.

Segments by Business Line

Business Segments is a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing an
individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.

For Management purposes, the Corporation is organized into 03 (three) operating segments:
Construction business segment; Construction materials business segment; and Real estate business
and other activities segment.

55

Opening balance
VND

Number of shares registered for issuance

Number of shares issued and fully contributed capital

- Ordinary shares

Number of shares outstanding

- Ordinary shares

Par value of outslanding shares: 10,000 VND/share

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

10,000
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LICOGI CORPORATION -JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM B 09_ DN/HN
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circular No. 20212014fif-BfC
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the lvlinistry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED}
These notes are ah ihtegtal paft of and should be read in conjunction with the acconpanying consolidated financial statenent

1 REVENUE FROM GOODS SOLD ANO SERVICES RENDERED
Current year

VND

Prior year

VND

Sales of merchandise and services
Sales of goods and construction materials

Sales of services rendered

Sales from construction contracts

Sales from real estate business activities

Deductions
lncluding:

- Sale return

- Sale discount

Net revenue from goods sold and services rendered

Revenue with related parties
(Details in Notes Vll.1)

2. COST OF GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Cost of finished products, goods, construction materials

Cost of services rendered

Cost of construction contract

Cost of real estate business activities

Provision/Reversal for inventory depreciation

Total

660,982,911

660,982,911 108,490,872

388,240

2,249,694,290,21',1 2,035,853,742,894

2,'100,790,094 1,980,514,386

2,250,355,273,122
1 ,830,906,047,313

24 ,446 ,1 54 ,581

395,003,071,228

2,035,962,622,006

1 ,597 ,505 ,121 ,295
21,451,592,544

411,445,428,252

5,560,479,915

108,879,112

\

Current year

VND

Prior year

VND I

1 ,612,820,287 ,260
17,076,529,938

367 ,707 ,701,275

1,324,175,021

't ,445,555,493,203
16,779,415,009

388,750,169,391

5,0'10,494,407

1 ,501,486,912

1,998,928,693,494 1,857,597,058,922

Current year

VND

Prior year

VND

6,379,173,328

108,293,992,909

541 108,044
3,424,550,000

15,785,029

2,955,780,000

437,138,095

2,217,510

10,057,692,035

104,924,477,135

82,449,006

31,329J02,178

122,049,744,915 146,413,437,587

57

VI. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

3. FINANCIAL INCOME

Deposit interest, loan interest

Dividends distributed proflt

Realized exchange rate gain

Prolit from selling shares of Licogi 14 Joint Stock
Company
Prolit from selling shares of Bac Ha Hydropower Joint
Stock Company
Profit from selling shares of Licogi 18 Joint Stock
Company
Unrealized exchange rale gain

Others

Total

14,061,752

5,655,481



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM B 09 - DN/HN
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circulat No.20212014fif-Bfc
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

VII. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(coNTTNUED)

4. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Prior year
VND

136,271,756,795lnlerest expenses

Loss from selling shares of Licogi 13 Joint Stock

Realized exchange rate difference loss

Unrealized exchange rate difference loss

Provision/Reversal of investment impairment

Other financial expenses

Total

Cost of management materials, office supplies

Labor cost

Fixed asset depreciation expenses

Cost of outsourced services

Other expenses in cash

Provision/ Reversal for warranty

Total

6. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Cost of management malerials, office supplies

Labor cost

Fixed asset depreciation expense

Provision/Reversal

Cost of out sourced services and other expenses in cash

Total

7. OTHER INCOME

,t22,017,306,564 135,069,639,377

1 19,151 ,969,698
5,184,519,567

(2,329,881,260)

10,698,559

Prior year

VND

1,333,278,122

2'l ,949 ,456 ,544
1 ,192,508,679

13,269,368,001

14,331,662,347

84,560,529

2,940,931,881

19,530,368,178

996,624,470

5,968,366,369

12,853,816,642

231,122,821

52,160,834,222 42,s21,230,361

Current year

VND

Prior year

VND

5,349,588,766

90,095,106,349

6,336,986,302

16,894,449,981

45 ,226 ,603 ,790

4,122,827,245

77,225,742,121

5,601,039,08'l

3,465,534,315

50 ,217 ,603 ,702

163,902,735,188',t40,632,746,464

'r8,061,194,731

155,559,474

398,617,399

Current year

VND

3,030,968,468

4,632,460,959

399,465,807

684,661,628

3,236,404,620

881 ,697,'133

9,834,690,147Total 2',t,646,340,072
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED}
These notes are an integral pad of and should be rcad in conjunction with the acconpanying consolidated financial statement

Current year
VND

5. SELLING EXPENSES

Sale, disposal of fixed assets

Penalties

Reversal of provision for construction warranty

Other income from bad debt settlement

Other income

76,1 10,385

1,082,041

(1 ,824,081,640)
544,771,796

Current year

VND

Prior year

VND



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORM B 09 - DN/HN
Building G l, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circular No. 20212014,rfT-BTC
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the l\4inistry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are en integrel peft of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accohpanying consolidated financial slatefient

VI. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(coNTTNUED)

8. OTHER EXPENSES

Current year

VND

Prior year

VND

Net book value and expenses from disposal of Fixed
assets
Depreciation cost of inactive fixed assets

Penalties fines

Other expenses

Total

9. CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current corporate income tax expense at Licogi 2

lnvestment And Construction One Member Company
Limited
Current corporate income tax expense at Dong Anh
Licogi Mechanical Joint Stock Company
Current corporate income tax expense at Dong Anh
lnvestment Construction and Building Materials Joint
Stock Company
Current corporate income tax expense at Mechanized
Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock Company N09

Current corporate income tax expense at Licogi
Consulting Joint Stock Company
Current corporate income tax expense at Licogi Urban
and Housing One Member Company Limited

Current corporate income tax expense at LICOGI
General lmport-Export One Member Company Limited

Total

,IO. BASIC EARNINGS(LOSSES) PER SHARE

Profiu(loss) for basic earnings per share calculation

Less: Provision for bonus and welfare fund (i)

ProfiU(loss) for basic earnings per share calculation
Weighted average number of common shares for basic
earnings per share calculation
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share (iii)

32,027,571,830 23,493,372,510

1,259,245,382

9,911,308,960

14,931,429,268

5,925,588,220

13,931 ,508,073
6,220,460,357

3,341,404,080

Current year
VND

9,090,910

6,702,056,110

3 ,7 17 ,489 ,646

1,228,525,157

25,011,923

597 ,929

886,611,411

5,462,945,903

1 ,981,524,951

1 ,361 ,77 I ,582

'1,166,290

668,s43

1 ,559,417

I
rz

\
s

fi,6a2,771,675 9,696,248,097

Current year

VND

Prior year
(Representated) (ii)

VNO

59,670,734,031

59,670,734,031

90,000,000

(1,288,698,762)

(9,450,884,928)

(10,739,583,690)

90,000,000

663

obJ

(11e)

(119)

(i) The Company allocates the reward and welfare fund from after-tax profit as approved by the
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Corporation

has not yet made a provisional allocation of the reward and welfare fund from the after{ax profit of

2024 to exclude it from the earnings used to calculate basic earnings per share for 2024

59

Prior year

VNO
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Building Gl, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan lssued under Circular No.202l2U4fiT-Bf C
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are an integral paft of and should be rcad in conjunclion with lhe accompanying consolidated financial statement

VII. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(coNTlNUED)

10. BASICEARNINGS(LOSSES)PERSHARE(CONTINUED)

(iD The Corporation has adjusted the basic earnings per share indicator for the financial year ended
December 31,2023, due to the impact of the allocation to the reward and welfare fund as per the
resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of its subsidiaries, as follows:

AdjustedNumber reported

VND VND

Number after
adj usted

VND

Accounting profit after tax
Estimated welfare bonus fund
deduction

ProfiU(loss) for calculating basic
earnings per share
Weighted average number of
common shares for basic earnings
per share calculation

Basic earnings per share

(1,288,698,762) (1,288,698,762)

(9,450,884,928)(9,450,884,928)

(1,288,698,762) (s,450,884,928) (10,73s,s83,690)

90,000,000 90,000,000

(14) (105) (11e) $
c

rii

0l
hi+

(iii) Diluted earnings per share: The Corporation does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares that
would impact earnings per share during the financial year or as at the date of this financial statement.
Therefore, diluted earnings per share is equalto basic earnings per share.

VII. OTHER INFORMATION

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

List of related parties with signfficant transactions and balances for the year:

Related party Relationshi

Licogi 14 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company

Binh Long Construction lnvestment Joint Stock Company

Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Dong Anh S lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint Stock Company

Thang Long lndustrial Park Company Limited

MIK Group Corporation Vietnam

Board of Management,Board of Directors and major shareholders

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading Company Limited

Associated

Associated

Associated

Associated

Associated

Joint venture company

Related company

Operating Company
Major shareholder

60



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi

FORMB09-DN/HN
lssued under Circulat No. 20212014t1T -BTC

Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes arc an integral pai ol and should be read in conjunction whh the accofipanying consolidated financial statefient

v[. oTHER TNFORMATTON (CONTTNUED)

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTTONS AND BALANCES (CONTTNUED)

During the yea4 the Company entered into the following significant transactions with its related
parties:

Current year Prior year

VND VND

Sale of goods and services
Thang Long lndustrial Park Company Limited

Purchase
Dong Anh S lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company
Loan repayment
Dong Anh 8 lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company
Profit dividends are distributed
Thang Long lndustrial Park Company Limited

Binh Long Construction lnvestment Joint Stock

Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Loan interest
Dong Anh 8 lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company
Loans
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited
Loan principal repayments

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited
lnterest expense
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited

2,100,790,094

2,100,790,094
,t,363,636,364

1,363,636,364

103,233,347,659

76,719,187,959

2,156,875,000

24,357,284,700

398,432,358

398,432.358

160,540,000,000

160,540,000,000

104,000,000,000

104,000,000,000

23,148,s141A6

23,148,514,186

'l ,9 80, 5't 4, 38 6

1 ,980,5'14,386

4,204,545,455
4,204,545,455

770,000,000

770,000,000

102,646,352,135

81,543,989,035

2,156,875,000

18,945,488,1 00

480,002,000

480,002,000

103,640,200,000

103,640,200,000

20,093,070,588

20,093,070,588

)N

II
:fu

\7
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750,000,000

750,000,000

74,994,200,000

74,994,200,000
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FORMB09-DN/HN
lssued under Circulat No.20212U4fff -Bf C

Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Ministry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are an integral paft of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidaled financial stalement

vll. oTHERINFORMATTON(CONTTNUED)

I. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED}

Significant related pafty balances as at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND

Short-term trade receivables
Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock Company
Thang Long lndustrial Park Company Limited
MIK Group Corporation Vietnam
Advances to suppliers
Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company
Loan receivables
Dong Anh 8 lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company
Other receivables
Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company
Dong Anh I lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company
Short-term trade payables
Dong Anh I lnvestment and Construction Materials
Joint Stock Company
Short-term loans
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited
Long-term loans
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited
Other payables
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited
Binh Long Construction lnvestment Joint Stock Company
lnterest payable
Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading
Company Limited

30,954,0r 9,246
4,804,043,818

178,715,160
25,97't,260,268

3,695,789,577
3,695,789,577
4,291,'160,010
4,291 ,160,01 0

3,795,964,577
3,695,789,577

1 00,175,000

'109,322,197, 156

109,322,197,156

203,675,000,000
203,675,000,000

66,470,625,000
60,000,000,000

6,470,625,000
't 17,555,987,831
1 17,555,987,831

13,643,596,369
4,804,043,8'18

165,960,656
8,673,591,895
3,695,789,577
3,695,789,577
5,041,,t 50,010
5,041 ,160,010

4,455,0't 0,455
4,337,712,455

1 18,298,000

1,022,280,000
1,022,280,000

64,137 ,197,156
64,137,197,156

192,320,000,000
192,320,000,000

68,527,500,000
60,000,000,000

8,627,500,000
94,407,473,545
94,407,473,645

HI
(
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Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi Dated 22 December 2014 issued by the Minist ry of Finance
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
Th$e notes are an integral paft ol and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying consotidated linancial statement

v . oTHER TNFORMATTON (CONTTNUED)

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTTONS AND BALANCES (CONTTNUED)

The income, remuneration and allowances of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management during the year are as follows:

Current year

VND

1,381,936,000

133,000,000

376,032,000

1 '18,548,000

356,028,000

356,028,000

42,300,000

974,769,067

228,948,364

139,743,636

263,680,000

342,397,067

502,028,000

356,028,000

73,000,000

73,000,000

1,413,848,466

122,000,000

430,499,668

363,299,696

265,891 ,178

508,473,581

358,464,490

75,009,091

75,000,000

\
IY

Al'l

IE
.zv

2,858,733,067 2,934,012,589

2. COMMITMENT TO OPERATIONAL LEASE

The Corporation signed a contract with the Hanoi Department of Land and Housing under land lease
contract No. 146-2003/DCND-HDDTTN at Gl building, Nguyen Trai street, Thanh Xuan Bac ward,
Thanh Xuan district, Hanoi for the purpose of using it as an office and production Management office
for 30 years from 01 January, 2003. The leased land area is 1,928 m2. According to this contract, the
Corporation must pay Iand rent until the contract expires according to current regulations of the State.

ln addition, the Corporation's member units sign land lease contracts for the purpose of office and
production workshop use. According to these contracts, the member units must pay annual land rent
until the contract expires according to current regulations of the State.

3. LITIGATION, LEGAL DISPUTES

According to the first instance judgment No. 30/2024IKDTM-ST dated July 12,2024 of the People's
Court of Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City:

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary) is
obligated to repay the debt to the Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development under Credit
Agreement No. 1480 L4V20120044'l /HOTD dated June 29, 2012, along with 10 debt acknowledgment
notes, with a total amount of VND 7,583,146,207, of which the principal is VND 4,900,956,630, interest
is VND 2,682,189,577. The Company shall continue to bear interest at a rate of 4.86o/o/year from the
day following the firslinstance trial (July 12, 2024) until the outstanding debt is fully repaid to the
Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development.

63

lncome of the Board of the Driector

1. Mr. Oinh Viet Tung

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai
3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hop

4. Mr. Nguyen Danh Quan

5. Mr. Ung Tien Do

6. Mr. Nguyen Truong Son

lncome of the Board of Management

1. Mr. Vu Nguyen Vu

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai

3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hop

4. Mr. Nguyen Anh Dung

lncome of The Board of Supervisory
1. Mr Phan Hai Trieu

2. Mrs. Duong Thi Phuong

3. Mrs. Kieu Bich Hoa

Total

Prior year

VND

380,864,490

380,864,490

99,61 9,818

'1,011,690,542

382,499,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes are an inlegral parl of and should be ead in conjunction with the accompanying consoliclated linancial statenenl

v . oTHER TNFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3. LITIGATION, LEGAL DISPUTES (CONTINUED)

Accept the lawsuit request of the Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development of Vietnam to force
LICOGI Corporation - JSC to perform the debt guarantee obligation on behalf of LICOGI Electricity and
Water lnstallation Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of the Corporation) for the entire principal and
interest debt under Credit Contract No. 1480 1AV201200441/HDTD dated June 29, 2012 in case
Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of the
Corporation) fails to fully perform its debt repayment obligation to the Bank under authorization No.

14o./TCT-KTTC dated April 1,2012 ol LICOGI Corporation - JSC. Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and
Rural Development has the right to request competent enforcement agencies to handle assets under

the ownership and legal use rights of LICOGI Corporation - JSC in accordance with the provisions of
law to recover debt if the Corporation violates its guarantee obligations.

Regarding court fees: Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock

Company must pay VND 115,583,'146 in flrst-instance commercial court fees. Refund to the Vietnam
Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development the advance court fee of VND 57,600,000 paid in the

receipt of advance court fees and court fees No. 00125387 dated October 23, 2023 of the Thanh Xuan
District Civil Judgment Enforcement Office.

According to the appealjudgment No. 01/2025IKDTM-PT dated January 3, 2025 of the People's Court

of Hanoi City, it is decided that:

Uphold the first instance commercial judgment No. 30/2024IKDTM-ST dated July 12,2024 ol lhe
People's Courl of Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City.

Regarding court fees: LICOGI Corporation - JSC is required to pay an appellate court fee of VND

2,000,000, which will be deducted from the amount already paid according to Receipt No. 36313 daied

July 30,2024, at the Civil Judgment Enforcement Department of Thanh Xuan District' Hanoi City.

As of the date of preparing and presenting this consolidated financial statement, Water Electrical

system and Machinery lnstallation LlcoGl Joint Stock company (a subsidiary) has not yet repaid the
principal and interest on the loan to the Vietnam Bank forAgriculture and Rural Oevelopment.

on March 25, 2025, the Corporation submitted a petition to the chief Justice of the High People's

Court in Hanoi and the Chief Prosecutor of the High People's Procuracy in Hanoi, requesting a review

under the cassation procedure for the aforementioned appellate judgment.

RETROSPECTIVE ADJUSTMENT

a

/p.,

/

4.

According to Appellate Judgment No. O'I/2025/KDTM-PT dated January 3, 2025, regarding the credit

contract dispute between the Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development and Water
Electrical system and Machinery lnstallation Llcocl Joint stock comPany (subsidiary). From 2011 to
2023, the iompany recorded loan interest expenses based on the agreed interest rates in the debt
acknowledgment documents, ranging from 15o/o lo lgYolyear. As per the aforementioned judgment, the
interest raG was adjusted to 4.S6yolyeat, w1h no overdue penalty interest applied. At the time of
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, lhe
Corporation retroactively adjusted the comparative figures of the consolidated flnancial statements

because Water Electricrl System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock Company (Subsidiary)

retroactively adjusted the 2023 financial statements related to inlerest expenses, speciflcally as follows:

ITEMS codes
Opening balance

(before adjustment)
Retroactive
adlustment

Opening balance
(after adiustment)

1. Short{erm accrued expenses
2. Retained eamings

- Retained earnings
accumulated to the prior year

- Retained earnings of the
current year

3. Non - controlling interest

421b

315
421
421a

429

(1,288,698,762)

338,339,796,358
(588,674,634,812)
(587,385,936,050)

79,035,205,692

(14,159,767,998)
12,732,022,362
12,732,022,362

1.427,745,636

324,180,028,360
(575,942,612,4s0)
(574,653,913,688)

(1,288,698,762)

80,462,951,328
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v

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUTED)
These notes arc an inlegral pai of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statement

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no significant events occurring after 31 December 2024 which would require

adjustments or disclosures to be made in the consolidated financial statements.

Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer

Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accountant

anh Hai
Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2025
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No. 491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock Company (the "Corporation') presents this
report together with the Corporation's Separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORY

The members of the Board of Directors, Board of Management and Board of Supervisory of the Corporation
during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

The Board of Directors

1

2
3
4
5

6

Dinh Viet Tung
Phan Thanh Hai
Nguyen Thanh Hop
Nguyen Truong Son
Nguyen Danh Quan
Ung Tien Do

'1. Mr. Vu Nguyen Vu
2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai
3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hop
4. Mr. Nguyen Anh Dung

1. Mr. Phan Hai Trieu
2. Mrs. Duong Thi Phuong
3. Mrs. Kieu Bich Hoa

M
M
M
M
M
M

Chiel Executive Officer (resigned on 16 August 2024)
Chief Executive Officer (appointed on 16 August 2024)
Deputy Chief Executive Officer (resigned on 01 October 2024)
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Head of the Supervisory Board
lvlember
lvlember
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LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Corporation during the year and until the date of this report are

r. Vu Nguyen Vu Chief Executive Officer (from Q1 January 20241o 16 August 2024)
r. Phan Thanh Hai Chief Executive Officer (from 16 August 2024)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT' STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Management of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the separate financial statements
of each year, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation as at 31 December
2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to
financial reporting. ln preparing these separated financial statements, the Board of Management is required
lo:

. Select suitable accounling policies and then apply them consistently;

. Makejudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the separated financial statements,
. Prepare the separate financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to

presume that the Corporation will continue in business; and
. Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparing and

presenting the separated financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds.

2

The Board of Manaoement

The Board of SuDervisorv

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Member (appointed on 26 June 2024)
Member (resigned on 26 June 2024).
Member
Member



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building Gl, No. 491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan Bac Ward, Thanh xuan District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT' STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and that the
separated financial stalements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for
enterprises and legal regulations relating to financaal reporting. The Board of Management is also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of lvlanagement conflrms that the Corporation has complied with the above requirements in
preparing these separate financial statements.

of the Board of Management,

Chief utive Officer
Ha Noi, March 31, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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To: Shareholders, the Board of Directors and Board of Management
LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (the "Corporation"), prepared on March 31,2025, as set out from page 6 to page 50, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, Notes to the separate financial statements.

Board of Manaqement's Responsibilitv

The Board of Managemenl of LICOGI Corporation - Joint Stock Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these separated financial statements in accordance wjth Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting and for such
internal control as Board of Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditlng. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the separate financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Corporation's
preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Corporation's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accountjng estimates made by management, as well as evaluatjng
the overall presentation of the separate financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

As of January 1, 2017 , the Corporation has capitalized interest on the Thinh Liet new urban area project with
a total accumulated value of VND 282.58 billion. ln which, interest expense is recorded in the item "Long-term
unfinished business production costs" related to the CT7 lot - Thinh Liet new urban area project at VND 10.8
billion, the remaining capitalized interest expense with a value of VND 271.78 billion was used by the
Corporation - Parent Company as part of the capital contribution when establishing the Subsidiary company -
Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company Limited in 2016. As of the handover of this project on July
20,2016 to the subsidiary, the Corporation has capitalized interest on this project with a total accumulated
value of VND 271.6 billion. We were unable to obtain the necessary information to determine the value of
interest expenses capitalized in this Project in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 16 -
Borrowing costs (VAS No. '16).

In 2017, the Corporation used capitalized interest expenses in the Thinh Liet new urban area project - CT7
item with an accumulated value of VND '10.8 billion as part of the capital contribution when establishing a
subsidiary company - Licogi 2 lnvestmentAnd Construction One lMember Company Limited.

As at January 1, 2024, lhe Corporation has capitalized the interest of loan contracts disbursed for the
purpose of financing the project or paying the principal for the project of VND 72.99 billion into the item "Othe.
short{erm receivables". ln 2024, the Corporation continues to capitalize the interest of contracts serving
production and business purposes or serving the project with a capital value of VND 40.15 billion into the item
"Other short-term receivables". Accordingly, the total value of interest expense capitalized accumulated up to
December 31, 2024 into the item "Other short-term receivables" is VND 113.14 billion (Note V.5).

since 2001



TNDEPENDENT AUDITORS', REpORT (CONTTNUED)

Basis for oualified opinion (Continued)

Because the Thinh Liet New Urban Area project was long-term, we are unable to collect the necessary
information to determine the interest expense on this project according to Accounting Standard No. 16 -
Borrowing costs (VAS No.16). Therefore, we are unable to determine whether it is necessary to adjust the
balance of the items "lnvestments in subsidiaries", "Other short{erm receivables" as at January 01, 2024 and
as at December 31, 2024 related to this project.

As at January 01,2024 and as at December 31, 2024, the Subsidiary - Licogi Housing and Urban
Development Company Limited did not assess the recoverability of the advance payment to the Thinh Liet
New Urban Area Pro.iect Management Board with a value of approximately VND 55 billion. The Corporation
has not made provisions for the investment in this Subsidiary in accordance with the guidance in Circular No.
20012fi4fif -BfC dated December 22,2014 of the l\ilinistry of Finance. lf the Corporation makes provisions
for the investment in this Subsidiary, the items "Long{erm financial investments" and "Undistributed
accounting profit after tax" as at January 01, 2024 and as at December 31, 2024 will decrease by
approximately VND 55 billion, respectively.

Qualified opinion

ln our opinion, except for the matters described in the "Basis for qualified audit opinion', the separated
financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all material respects, the financial position of Corporation
as at 3'l December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended as at
December 31, 2024 in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises
and legal regulations relating to financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matters

We would like to draw the readers' attention to Note ll of the Notes to the separate financial statements,
according to Decision No. '1456/0D-BXD dated November 12, 20'18 on the actual value of State capital at the
time of handover of the parent company - lnfrastructure Development and Construction Corporation into
Licogi Corporation - Joint Stock Company, the value of State capital does not include the opportunity cost
value of the Thinh Liet New Urban Area Project. The determination of the opportunity cost value of the Thinh
Liet New Urban Area Project is carried out under the direction of the Prime Minister and the guidance of the
Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of Construction and other management agencies. The Corporation is
responsible for submitting the opportunity cost value of this project to the Enterprise Support and
Development Fund after it is officially determined.

We would like to draw the readers' attention to Note Vll.3 of the Notes to the separate financial statements.
As at 31 December 2024, lhe accumulated loss of the Corporation was VND 355,868,682,015 (as at 01
January 2024, at was VND 36'1,197 ,474,426), short-term debt exceeded short-term assets by VND
824,988,7 43,309 (as at 01 January 2024, it was VND 866,619,702,539). The ability of the Corporation to
continue as a going concern will depend on the implementation of its business plan and the financial support
of credit institutions. These events, together with other matters as presented in Note ll of the Notes to the
Financial Statements, indicate the exjstence of material uncertainties that may cast signiflcant doubt on the
Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board of Management of the Corporation also prepared the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2024 including the parent company and its subsidiaries. Users of the
financial statements of the Corporation should read the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation

ncla I year ended 31 December 2024 for full information on the consolidated financial position and
sults of operations of the Corporation.

d opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters

\
\

t'1,

',

Nguyen Thi Thanh Hoa
Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 1402-2023-072-01
On behalf of
lnternational Auditing Company Limited
Hanoi, March 31, 2025

Kieu Manh Long
Auditor
Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 5727-2023-072-01
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G'1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstnct, Ha Nor

FORM B 01 -DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014[T-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 ol the Minist of Finance

Unit: VND

ASSETS Codes Notes Closing balance Opening balance

A. CURRENT ASSETS

l, Cash and cash equivalents
I . Cash

ll. Short-term financial investments
1. Held{o-maturity investments

ll. Short-term receivables
1. Short-term trade receivables

2. Short{erm advances to suppliers

3. Short-term loan receivables

4. Other short{erm receivables

5. Provision for short-term doubtful debts

Il l. lnventories
1. lnventories

2. Provision for devaluation of inventories

lV. Other short-terrn assets
1. Short{erm prepayments

2. Value added tax deductibles

3. Taxes and other receivables from the Stale
budget
B, NON.CURRENT ASSETS

l. Long-term receivables
1 . Long{erm loans receivables

ll. Fixed assets

1 . Tangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Acc u m ul ated de p re c i at io n

2. lntangible assets

- Cos,

- Acc u m u late d de p re c i atio n

ll l. lnvestment property

- Cost

lV. Long-term assets in progress

1. Long-term work in progress

2. Long{erm construction in progress

V. Long-term financial investments
'1. lnvestments in subsidiaries

2. lnvestments in joint-ventures, associates

3. Equity investments in other enlities

4. Provision for impairment of long{erm financial
investments
5. Held{o-maturity investments

Vl. Other long-term assets
1. Long{erm prepayments

100

110

111

120

123
'130

131

132

135

136

137

140

141

149

150

15'l

200

210

220

221

222

223

227

229

230

231

240

241

242

250

251

253

254

255

260

26'l

v.3
V.4a

v.5
v.6
v.7

v.'1 0a

V17a

v.4b

v.9

v.8
v.11

v.12
v.13

v.'l0b

853,160,960,075

8,205,680,266

8,205,680,266

789,846,954,834
'183,520,080,577

83,307,778,855

196,903,623,180

432,503,351,082

(106,387,878,860)

38,635,887,375

39,503,108,700

(867 ,221 ,325\
16,472,437,600

4,491,660

16,104,332,458

363,613,482

1,798,113,763,1r 6

't4,010,000,000

14,010,000,000

69,316.222,464

69,076,622,463

333,147,249,417

(264,070,626,954)

239,600,001

366,000,000

(126,399,999)

1,357,365,162

1,357,365,162

10,354,346,991

10,354,346,991

1,702,572,6'15,351

1,448,580,147 ,489

321 ,547 ,551 ,645
49,876,625,400

(1 17,431 ,709,1 83)

503,213,1,t8

503,213,148

784,087 ,A21,023
9,s26,789,245

9,526,789,245

21,703,693,'t16

21,703,693,1 '16

592,s32,288,3,r8
'181 ,969,474,373

69,759,438,339

196,903,623,180

354,857,620,909

(1 10,957,868,453)

42,777,672,',165

43,644,893,490

(867 ,221 ,325\
17,547,378,119

26,637,347

17,165,736,266

355,004,536

1 ,823,271,353,62',1

3,860,000,000

3,860,000,000

81,404,473,684

81,091 ,673,683

394,440,059,845
(313,348,386,162)

312,800,001

366,000,000

(53,199,999)

I,357,365,152

1,357,365,162

14,943,9r 8,305

4,589.571,314
10,354,346,991

1,720,792/19s,002
1 ,448,580,147 ,489

322,588,897,64s

59,260,545,400

(1 11,137,395,532)

1,500,000,000

913,401,468

913,40'1,468

TOTAL ASSETS 270 2,651,274,723,19',1 2,607,359,174,644

7-,

/

The notes set out on pages 10 to 50 are an integral paft of these separate financial statements 6

SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Distnct, Ha Nor

FORM B 01 -DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

RESOURCES Codes Notes Closing balance Opening balance

C. LIABILITIES

l. Current liabilities
1. Short{erm trade payables

2. Short{erm advances from customers
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the State
budget

4. Payables to employees

5. Shortlerm accrued expenses

6. Other cunent payables

7. Short{erm loans and obligations under finance
leases
8. Short{erm provisions

9. Bonus and welfare funds

ll. Long-term liabilities
1. Long{erm uneamed revenue

2. Other long{erm payables

3. Long-lerm loans and obligations under finance
leases

D, EQUITY

l. Owner's equity
'1. Owner's contributed capital

- Ordinary shares carrying voting rights

2. Retained earnings
- Retained eamings accumulated to the year end

- Retained eamings of the current year

400

410

411

411a

421
421a

421b

300

310

311

3't2

313

314

5tc
'lto

320

321

322

330

336

337

338

v.15
v.16
v.17b

v.18
v.19a
v.20

v.19b
v.21

v.22
544,131,317,985

544,'131,3'17,985

900,000,000,000

900,000,000,000

(355,868,682,015)
(361 ,197,474,426)

5,328,792,411

2,107,143,405,206

1,678,149,703,384

224,623,369,544

258,805,876,869

49,755,687,307

16,004,562,127

238,300,968,234

58,784,168,165

829,144,158,494

2,730,912,644

428,993,7 o'.t,822

318,701,822

60,000,000,000
368,675,000,000

2,068,s56,6/t9,070

1,650,707,523,552

249,054,665,000

161 ,233,731 ,47 5

50,143,225,893

12,466,130,936

312,162,282,793

56,101 ,280,281

800,656,583,119

6,158,711,421

2,7 30,912,644

417,849,125,508

529,125,508

60,000,000,000

357,320,000,000

538,802,525,574

538,802,525,574

900,000,000,000

900,000,000,000

(361 ,197 ,474,426)
(367,326,675,735)

6,129,201,309

TOTAL RESOURCES 440 2,651,27:u4i121 2,607 ,359,174,644

TIC0GI.CTCP

I
o'

il
*\
o

\

Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer

Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accou ntant

anh Hai
Chief Executive Officer
March 31,2025

Ihe notes set oul on pages 10 to 50 are an integral patl of these separate financiai sfalements 7



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G 1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi

FORMB02-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
ITEMS Codes Notes Current year Prior year

l. Gross revenue from goods sold and
services rendered
2. Deductions
3. Net revenue from goods sold and services
rendered
4. Cost of sales

5. Gross profit from goods sold and services
rendered
6. Financial income
7. Financial expenses
- ln which: lnlerest expense

8. Selling expenses
9. General and administration expenses

10. Operating profit
'11. Other income
12. Other expenses

13. Profit from other activities
14. Accounting profit before tax

15, Current corporate income tax expense

'17. Net profit after corporate income tax

0'l

11

20

2',1

22
,'2

25

26

30

31

32

,t0

50

51

60

vl.t

vt.2

vl.3
vt.4

vr.5

vt.6

vt.7

vr.8

208,297,078,555

208,297,078,555

205,822,337,001

2,47 4,7 41,554

126,334,8',17,562

98,487,903,595

87,320,891,385

2',t,266,497,7 68

9,055,157,753

6,3'14,792,549

10,04r,157,891

(3,726,365,342)

5,328,792,4't1

5,328,792,411

306,521,559,494

306,521,559,494

32'1,483,165,353

(14,961,605,8s9)

172,98'1,309,696

1 13,096,178,070

100,028,381,433

30,73't,953,429
'14,191,572,338

2,524,669,598
'10,587,040,627

(8,062,37r,029)

6,129,201,309

6,129,201,309

I
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Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer

Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accountant ecutive Officer

March 31,2025

The notes set out on pages 10 to 50 are an integral patl of these separate financial statements I
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, N0.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Distnct Ha Nor

FORMB03-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 20'14 of the Ministry of Flnance

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Under indirect method)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Codes Current year Prior yearITEMS

6,129,201,309

12,696,248,586

14,169,672,702

1,082,041

(175,505,979,294)

100,028,381,433

(42,481,393,2231

36,021,061,325

949,844,782
(3,379,984,326)

614,880,2'l l
(125,537,143,506)

(133,8'12,734,7371

(180,000,000)

3,067,000,000

(10,914,947 ,216)

52.601 ,254,100

(5,000,000,000)

6,803,822,730

1 02,985,141 ,387

149,362,271,001

514,104,616,944

(528,383,772,279)

(14,279,155,335)

1,270,380,929

8,257,490,357

(1,082,041)

\ 9,526,789,245

0'l

70

21

22

23

24

a2

03

04

05

06

08

25

lo
27

30

34

40

50

60

s,328,792,411

1 1,562,606,904

3,639,140,107

1,459,114

(126,379,382,777)

87,320,891,385

(18,526,492,856)

(51 ,103,900,325)
13,320,927,418

103,554,384,200

432,334,007

(203,151 ,806,245)
(155,474,553,801)

5,434,427,041

(10,936,077,784)

23,989,770,900

10.425,266,000

85,398,942,404

114,312,328,561

723,625,437,983

(683,782,862,608)

39,842,575,37s

(1,319,649,86s)

9,526,789,24s

I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1. Accounting profit before tax

2. Ad,ustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation

Provisions

Foreign exchange (gains)/ losses arising from
translating foreign currency items
(Gains)/losses from investing activities

lnterest expense

3. Operating profit before movements in working
capital
(lncrease)/Decrease in receivables

(lncrease)/Decrease in inventories

(lncrease)/Decrease in payables

(lncrease)/Decrease in prepaid expenses

lnterest paid

Net cash generated by/used in operating activities
II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and other
long-term assets

2. Proceeds from sale, disposal offixed assets and other
long{erm assets

3. Cash outflow for lending, buying debt instruments of
other entities

4. Cash recovered from lending, reselling debt instruments
of other entities

5. Equity investments in other entities

6. Cash recovered from investments in other

7. lnterest earned, dividends and profits received

Net cash generated by/used in investing activities
III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

1. Proceeds from borrowings

2. Repayment of borrowings

Net cash generated by/used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Etfect of changes an foreign exchange rate

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of t!9,yeer

TICOGI.CTCP
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Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer

Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accountant

nh Hai
Chief Executive Officer
March 31.2025

The notes set out on pages 10 to 50 are an integral patl of these separate financial statements I
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G'1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh X,ran Drstrict, Ha Noi

t.

1

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes aE an integtat paft of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying sepaate financial statement

GENERAL INFORMATION

Structure of ownership

LICOGI Corporation - JSC (hereinafter referred to as 'the Corporation"), formerly known as the
lnfrastructure Development and Construction Corporation, was established under Decision No.
gg8/BXD-TCLD dated November 20, 1995 of the Minister of Construction, a State-owned enterprise
under the Ministry of Construction. The Corporation transformed its model into a joint stock company
under Decision No. 2243lQD-TTg dated December 11,2014 ol the Prime Minister approving the
equitization plan of the lnfrastructure Development and Construction Corporation - One Member
Limited Liability Company. According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 0100106440, the
third change on December 31, 2015, issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and lnvestment, the
Corporation officially transformed into a joint stock company, changing its name from the lnfrastructure
Development and Construction Corporation - One Member Limited Liability Company to LICOGI
Corporation - Joint Stock Company with a charter capital of VND 900 billion. The Corporation operates
under the Business Registration Certificate No. 0'100106440, flrst issued by the Hanoi Department of
Planning and lnvestment on November 24, 2010, the 1oth change on Febuary 27,2025.

Head office of the Corporation: Building Gl, No. 49'l Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan Bac Ward,
Thanh Xuan District. Hanoi City.

2. Field of business

The Corporation operates in many different fields

3. Operating industry and principal activities

The Corporataon's main production and business activities include:

Construction and lnstallation: underground works, irrigation works (dykes, dams, canals, reservoirs,
irrigation systems, pipelines, pumping stations), hydroelectricity, thermal power, post offlce, water
supply and drainage, urban and industrial park infrastructure technical works, drilling and blasting
(Enterprises are only allowed to do business when permitted by competent State agencies);

lnvesting an and developing prolects on housing, urban areas, industrial parks, investing and
developing technical infrastructure, investing in the construction of electricity works and trading in

commercial electricity; investing and trading in office services, hotels, motels, tourism and
entertainment services, managing and exploiting comprehensive services in new urban areas and
concentraled residential areas:

Construction and installation and general contractor for construction and installation of civil, industrial
and traffic works (roads, raih ay bridges, road bridges, airports, ports, stations, tunnels);

Researching lhe appljcation and transfer of new technologies in the construction field, organizing
training, retraining, fostering management staff, specialized technical workers, education and
orientation to send Vietnamese workers and experts to work abroad for a limited period;

Manufacturing, trading and importing and exporting mechanical products, materials, machinery,
equipment, raw materials, types of construction materials, construction technology;

Construction investment consultancy includes: planning, establishment and appraisal of construction
investment projects, topographic survey, engineering geology, hydrogeology, design, preparation of
total cost estimates for construction works, project management, technical supervision of construction,
bidding consultancy and economic contracts on design, construction, installation, supply of materials
and equipment; testing, quality inspection of works (excluding legal consultancy)

4. Normal production and business cycle
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For the Corporation's real estate business activities, the production and busaness cycle usually lasts

more than '12 months. Other activities have a business cycle of no more than 12 months.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes arc an integnl patt ol and should be Eaal in conjunclion with the accompanying separale linancial statemenl

I. GENERALINFORMATION(CONTINUED)

5. Business structure

As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation has the following affiliated units:

Units Place Main business activities

Head Office

LICOGI Branch No. 1

LICOGI Construction Materials Branch

Dong Anh lnvestment Construction
and Building Materials Joint Stock
Company
Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint
Stock Company
Licogi Consulting Joint Stock
Company
Mechanized Construction and
lnstallation Joint Stock Company
No9
Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock
Company
Mechanized Construction and
lnstallation Joint Stock Company
No10
Licogi '15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Foundation Engineering and
Construction 20 Joint Siock
Company
Water Electrical System and
Machinery I nstallation Licogi Joint
Stock Company
Licogi Urban and Housing One
Member Company Limited
Licogi 2 lnvestment And
Construction One Member
Company Limited
LICOGI General lmport-Exporl One
Member Company Limited

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Construction, foundation, infrastructure

Construction, foundation, infrastructure

Construction materials production

lnformation about the Subsidiary as at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Su bsidiaries Place of
incorporation
and operation

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Dong Nai

Quang Ngai

Da Nang

Thanh Hoa

Hai Duong

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ha Noi

Ouang Ninh

Ha Noi

Proportion of
ownership
interest and
voting power
held
51.85%

89.06 7o

60.00%

51.00%

64.77%

57 .71%

64.650/o

56.33%

92.58%

89.92Yo

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Main business activities

Manufacturing and kading of
construction materials

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastruclure

Real Estate Business

Real Estate Business

Labor supply and management

t2

t-

0

I'
Manufacturing and trading of

mechanical products
Construction investment

consulting
Construction, foundation,

infrastructure
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes arc an integral paft of and should be reacl in conjunction with the accompanyihg separate tinancial stalemenl

I. GENERALINFORMATION(CONTINUED)

5. Business structure (Continued)

lnformation about the Assocrates as at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Name Place Benefit ratio Main business activities

Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock
Company
Licogi 14 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company

Name

Lao Cai

Phu Tho

Ha Noi

41 .010k

18.490k

22.62v"

lnformation about the lnvestee Companies as at December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Place of Proportion of Main business activities
incorporation ownership
and interest and
operation voting power

held

\
\

i1

c
4?

Licogi 12 Joint Stock Company Ha Noi

Licogi 13 Joint Stock Company Ha Noi

Quang Ngai

Ho Chi Minh
City
Ho Chi Minh
City
Ho Chi Minh
City

8.52o/o

1.95%

3.7 5o/o

1 .'l9o/o

0.36o/o

10.00%

10.00%

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Conslruction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construclion, foundation,
infrastructure

Electricity production and
trading

Construction works

Specialized construction

Civil construction

6. comparative figures

The comparative figures are data on the audited Separate financial statements for year ended 31

December 2023 audited.

7. Employee

The total number of employees of the Corporation as at December 3'l,2024 is 57 people (as at
December 31, 2023 is 12'l people).

II. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR

Basis for preparing separate financial statements

The accompanying separate financjal statements, expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND), are prepared
under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting.
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lnvestment and Construction Joint
Stock Company No.18
Dakdrinh Hydropower Joint Stock
Company
Long Son Petroleum lndustrial Zone
lnvestment Joint Stock Company
Vinashin - Licogi lnvestment
Construction Joint Stock Company
Licogi Project Management and
Construction Joint Stock Company

Electricity production and
trading

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Construction, foundation,
infrastructure

Ha Noi
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fhese notes are an integral part ol and should be rcad in conjunction vtth the accompanying separate financial statement

II. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION AND FINANCIAL YEAR (CONTINUED)

Basis for preparing separate financial statements (Continued)

The Corporation officially became a Joint Stock Company from December 31, 2015. The Corporation
has received approval from competent authorities under Decision No. 1456/QD-BXD dated November
12, 2018 on the actual value of State capital at the time of handover of the Parent Company -
lnfrastructure Development and Construclion Corporation into Licogi Corporation - Joint Stock
Company and has adjusted the flgures on the financial statements. However, due to some legal
problems related to the opportunity cost under the business cooperation contract for the Thinh Liet
New Urban Area investment prqect between the Corporation and Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestmenl
and Trading Company Limited and the actual situation of project implementation, the final settlement
value does not include opportunity cost. This opportunity cost will be calculated separately after
receiving instructions from the Prime Minister and the Corporation is responsible for submifting it
directly to the Enterprise Support and Development Fund after it is officially determined.

The separate financial statements of the Corporation are prepared on the basis of the financial
statements of the Corporation's Office and its subsidiaries. All transactjons and balances between the
Corporation's Office and its subsidiaries are completely eliminated when preparing the seParate
financial statements.

The accompanying separate financial statements are not intended to present the financial postion,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

Going concern assumption

As at 31 Decembet 2024, lhe accumulated loss of the Corporation was VND 355,868,682,0'15 (as at
0'l January 2024, was VND 361,197,474,426), short-term debt exceeded short{erm assets by VND
824,988,743,309 (as at 01 January 2024, it was VND 866,619,702,539), net cash flow from operating
activities in 2024 is negative VND 155,474,553,801 (in 2023 negatave VND 133,812,734,737\.f he
Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern depends on its sources of revenue and funding
from its partners. The Board of Management of the Corporation believes that the Corporation will be
able to mobilize capital from credit institutions and other sources to pay its debts as they come due (if
necessary) and maintain the necessary working capital to continue operations in the near future.

The Board of Management has carefully assessed the business plan and cash flow plan, as well as the
ability to balance cash sources to pay debts and financial obligations as they fall due. The Board of
Management believes that it is appropriate for lhe separate financial statements of the Corporation for
the year ended 31 December 2024 to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Fiscal year

The company's financial year begins from 01 January to 31 December

III. ACCOUNTING STANDAROS AND SYSTEM APPLIED

The Board of Managemenl ensures that it has complied with the requirements of Vietnamese
Accounting Standards and the Accounting regime for enterprises promulgated under the Circular No.
20012014fif-Bfc dated 22 Decembet 2014 by Ministry of Finance guiding the accounting regime for
enterprises and Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 2l March 2016 by Ministry of Finance amending
and supplementing some articles of Circular No. 20012014fff -BIC.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These noles arc an integral pai of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying separale frnancial statement

IV. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Corporation in the preparation ot
these financial statements, are as follows:

Estimates

The preparation of separated financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting
requires Board of Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the separated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Although
these accounting estimates are based on the Board of Management's best knowledge, actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial investments

H el &to-m atu ri ty i nvest nerts

Held-to-maturity investments comprise investmenls that the Corporation has the positive intent or
ability to hold to maturity, including term deposits (commercial bills), bonds, preference shares which
the issuer shall redeem at a certain date in the future, loans held to maturity to earn periodic interest
and other held{o-maturity investments.

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at
acquisition price plus directly attributable transaction costs. Post-acquisition interest income from held-
to-maturity investments is recognised in the income statement on accrual basis. Pre-acquisition
interest is deducted from the cost of such investments at the acquisition date.

When there is solid evidence that part or all of the investment may not be recoverable and the amount
of loss can be reliably determined, the loss is recorded in financial expenses during the year and
reduced. Direct deduction of investment value.

Held{o-maturity investments are measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts relating to held{o-maturity investments is made in accordance with
prevailing accounting regulations.

Loan receivables

Loan receivables are measured at cost less provision for doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts
relating to loan receivables is made in accordance with prevailing accounting regulations.

lnvestment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are companies controlled by the Corporation. Control is achieved when the Corporation
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee company so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Distflct, Ha Nor dated 22 December 2014 of the Minist of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes ate an integnl pai of and should be ead in conjunction wilh the accompanying separale financial statenent

tv. SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

I nvestm ents i n associates

An associate is an entity over which the Corporation has signiflcant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the inveslor but not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Corporation initially records investments in subsidiaries, .iolnt ventures and associates at cost. The
Corporation records in the lncome Statemenl the portion of the share of the investee's accumulated
net profit arising after the date of investment. Any other amount received by the Corporation other than
the share of profit is considered a recovery of investments and is recorded as a deduction from the
original cost of the investment. Dividends received in the form of shares are only recorded according to
the number of additional shares, not the value of the shares received/recorded at par value.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies are presented in the Balance
Sheet at cost less provisions for impairment (if any).

Provision for losses on investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is made when the
subsidiary, .ioint venture or associate suffers a loss, with the provision equal to the difference between
the actual capital contributions of the parties in the subsidiary, joint venture or associate and the actual
equity multiplied by the capital contribution ratio of the Corporation compared to the total actual capital
contributions of the parties in the subsidiary, joint venlure or associate. lf the subsidiary, .ioinl venture or
associate is the subject of the Consolidated Flnancial Statement, the basis for determining the
provision for losses is the Consolidated Financial Statement.

lncrease or decrease in the provision for investment losses in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates that must be set up at the end of the fiscal year and recorded in financial expenses.

Equiy investments in other entities

Equity investments in other entities represent the Corporation's investments in ordinary shares of the
entities over which the Corporation has no control,.ioint control, or significant influence.

Equity investments in other entities are carried at cost less provision for impairment.

Receivables

Receivables represent the amounts recoverable from customers or other debtors and are stated at
book value less provision for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts is set aside for each receivable based on the time of overdue payment of
principal according to the original debt commitment (not taking into account debt extension between
parties) or based on the level of possible loss according to the Companys assessment. The difference
between the provision to be set up at the end of this fiscal year and the provision set uP at the end of
the previous fiscal year is recorded as an increase or decrease in business management expenses in
the fiscal year. When receivables are determined to be uncollectible, they will be written off.

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the speciflc identification
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

The evaluation of necessary provision for inventory obsolescence follows current prevailing accounting
regulations which allow provisions to be made for obsolete, damaged, or sub-standard inventories and
for those which have costs higher than net realisable values as at the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an inlegral paft of and should be rcad in conjuhclion wilh the accompanying sepaale financial statetfient

tv. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLTCTES (CONTTNUED)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are slated at cosl less accumulated depreciation.

The costs of purchased tangible fixed assets comprise their purchase prices and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their workjng conditions and locations for their inlended use.
The costs of tangible fixed assets formed from construction investment by contractual mode or self-
construction or self-generating process are the settled costs of the invested construction projects in
accordance with the prevailing State's regulations on investment and construction management,
directly-related expenses and registration fee (if any). ln the event the construction project has been
completed and put into use but the settled costs thereof have not been approved, the cost of tangible
flxed assets is recognised at the estimated cost based on the actual cost incurred. The estimated cost
will be adjusted according to the settled costs approved by competent authorities

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated uslng the straighlline method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Years

Buildings and structures 10 -25
Machinery, equipment 03 - 15

Motor vehicles 05 - 10

Offlce equipment 03 - 10

Tangible fixed assets are revalued in accordance with the State's decisions or when state-owned
enterprises are equitised. The cost and accumulated depreciation of tangible flxed assets are adjusted
based on the revaluation value approved by competent authorities as regulated.

Loss or gain resulting from sales and disposals of tangible fixed assets is the difference between proflt
from sales or disposals of assets and their residual values and is recognised in the income statement.

lntangible assets and amortisation

The Corporation's intangible fixed assets are computer software. lntangible flxed assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over a period of 05 years.

lnvestment properties

lnvestment properties are composed of land use rights, buildings and structures held by the
Corporation to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. lnvestment properties held to earn rentals are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation while investment properties held for capital appreciation
are stated at cost less impairment loss. The costs of purchased investment properties comprise their
purchase prices and any directly attributable expenditures, such as professional fees for legal services,
property transfer taxes and other related transaction cosls. The costs of self-constructed investmenl
properties are the flnally accounted construction or directly attributable costs of the properties.

lnvestment real estate at the Corporation is investment real estate held for appreciation, the
Corporation does not depreciate. ln case there is solid evidence that investment real estate held for
appreciation has decreased in value compared to market value and the decrease in value can be
determined reliably, the investment real estate held for appreciation is recorded as a decrease ln

original cost and the loss is recorded in cost of goods sold.

The transfer from owner-occupied real estate to investment real estate or from investment real estate
to owner-occupied real estate or inventory is only possible when there is a change in purpose of use.
Owner-occupied real estate converts to investment property when the owner ends use of the property
and when another party leases it for operation. lnvestment property converts to owner-occupied
property when the owner begins to use the property. lnvestment real estate converts to inventory when
the owner begins to develop it for sale. lnventories are converted into investment properties when the
owner begins leasing them lo another party. Construction real estate is converted into investment real
estate at the end of lhe construction phase and is handed over for investment.

Conversjon of using between investment property and owner-occupied property or inventory does not
change the carrying amount of the converted asset and does not change the cost of the property.
assets in the determination of value or in preparing the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These noles are an integtal pad of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying separate financial statenent

tv. SUMMARY OF STGNTF|CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEO)

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental and administrative purposes or for other
purposes are carried at cost. The cost includes any costs that are necessary to form the asset
including construction cost, equipment cost, other directly aftributable costs in accordance with the
Corporation's accountang policy. Such costs will be included in the estimated costs of the fixed assets
(if settled costs have not been approved) when they are put into use.

According to the State's regulations on investment and construction management, the seftled costs of
completed construction projects are subject to approval by appropriate level of competent authorities.
The final costs of these completed construction projects may vary depending on the final approval by
competent authorities.

Prepayments

Prepaid expenses include actual expenses that have been incurred bul are related to the results of
production and business activities of many accounting periods. Prepaid expenses include the value of
tools, instruments, small components issued for use, other repair costs and are considered to have the
potential to bring future economic benelits to the Corporation. These costs are capilalized in the form
of prepayments and allocated to the lncome Statement, using the straight-line method in accordance
with current accounting regulations.

Accrued expenses

Payables for goods and services received from sellers or provided to buyers during the reporting period
but not actually paid and other payables such as loan interest payable, construction costs, other
production and business costs... are recorded in production and business costs ofthe reporting period.

Provisions for payables

Provisions for payables are recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured based on management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date.

Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue lncludes revenue received in advance such as: the amount of money that
customers have paid in advance for one or more fiscal years for labor export services.

Unearned revenue is transferred to Sales and Service Revenue at the amount determined in

accordance with each fiscal year.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when allfive (5) following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The Corporation has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

(b) The Corporation retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with; ownership nor effective control over the goods sold:

(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer is

entitled to return the products or goods, purchased under specific conditions, revenue is

recognized only when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to pay
return products and goods (except for cases where customers have the right to return goods in

the form of exchange for other goods or services
(d) The Corporation has obtained or will receive economic benefits from the sale transaction, and
(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes ae an integral paft of and should be rcad in conjuncTion u/nh the accompanying sepaate financial stalemenl

rv. SUMMARY OF StGNTF|CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Unearned revenue (continued)

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of such
transactions can be measured reliably. Where a transaction involving the rendering of services is
attributable to several periods, revenue is recognised in each period by reference to the percentage of
completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction
can be measured reliably when all four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; When the contract stipulates that the buyer is
entitled to return the products or goods, purchased under specific conditions, revenue is

recognized only when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to pay
return products and goodsi

(b) lt is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Corporation;

(c) The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured
reliably; and

(d) The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the Corporation's construction conlracts is recognised in accordance with the
Corporation's accounting policy on construction contracts (see details below).

lnterest income is recognized on an accrual basis, determined on the balance of the deposit account
and the interest rate applied.

lnterest from investments is recognized when the Corporation has the right to receive the profit.

Dividends and profits distributed

Dividends and profits distributed are recorded when the Corporation is entitled to receive dividends or
profits from capital contributions. Dividends received in shares are only tracked by the number of
shares increased, not recording the value of shares received.

Construction contact

Revenue and costs of construction contracts are recognised as follows

When the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably

For construction contracts that stipulate that the contractor is paid according to the planned
schedule, revenue and costs relaled lo the contract are recognized in proportion lo the work
completed by the Corporation self-determined at the end of the financial year.
For construction contracts where the contractor is paid according to the value of the volume
performed, the revenue and costs related to the contract are recognized in proportion to the
completed work confirmed bythe customer and is reflected on the invoice issued.

lncreases and decreases in construction and installation volume, compensation and other revenues
are recognised as revenue only when agreed with the customer.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably

. Revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incuned for which recovery is reasonably
cerlain.. Contract costs are recognised as expenses only when incurred.

The difference between the cumulative total revenue of a construction contract recognised and the
cumulative amount recorded on invoices for payment according to the planned progress of the conkact
is recognised as receivable or payable according to the planned progress of the construction contracts.
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tv. suMMARy oF stcNrFrcANT AccouNTtNG POL|CIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years (including loss carried foMard, if any) and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is recognased on significant differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit
and are accounted for using balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to proflt or loss, except when it relates
to items charged or crediled directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Corporation intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

The determination of the tax currently payable is based on the current interpretation of tax regulations.
However, these regulations are subject to periodic variation and their ultimate determination depends
on the results of the tax authorities' examinations.

Other taxes are paid in accordance with the prevailing lax laws in Vietnam

Related parties

Related parties are enterprises - including parent companies, subsidaaries, and fellow subsidiaries -
and individuals that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled
by, or are under common control with, the Company. Associates, individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the
enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company, close
members of the family of these individuals or of these individuals and companies associated with these
individuals also constitute related parties.

ln considering each related party relationship, attention is paid to the substance of the relationship, not
merely the legal form.
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Borrowing costs include interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings. Borrowing
costs are recognized as expenses when incurred. In cases where borrowing costs are directly related
to the investment in construction or production of unflnished assets, which require a long enough
period (ove l2 months) to be put to use for the intended purpose or sale, these borrowing costs are
capitalized. For separate loans serving the construction of flxed assets, investment real estate,
borrowing interest is capitalized even if the construction period is less than 12 months. lncomes arising
from temporary investment of loans are recorded as a reduction in the original cost of related assets.

For general loans in which there is an investmenl in construction or production of unfinished assets,
the capitalized borrowing costs are determined according to the capitalization rate for the weighted
average cumulative costs incurred for the investment in basic construction or productaon of that asset.
The capitalization rate is calculated at the weighted average interest rate of the borrowings not yet paid
during the year, except for specific borrowings serving the purpose of forming a speciflc asset.

Taxation

lncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstnct, Ha Nor

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014iTT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 ofthe Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes arc an integnl pad of and should be read in conjunction with the acconpanying separate financial stalement

IV. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET

I. CASH
Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

Cash on hand

Bank demand deposits

Total

2, SHORT.TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

MIK Group Viet Nam Joint Stock Company

lnvestment and Construction Joint Stock Company No.8

Dakdrinh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

578 lnvestment And Construction Joint Slock Company

Mai Linh lnvestment Joint Stock Company

Foundation Engineering and Construction 20 Joint Stock
Company
Hoa Binh Construction Group Joint Stock Company

Project Management Board of lnvestment and
Construction of Hanoi National University in Hoa Lac
LICOGI 13 Joint Stock Company

Other

Total

Other receivables from related parties
(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation
Licogi Joint Stock Company
Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint
Stock Company

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Minh Duc Ha Transport and Trading Co., LTD

Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company

Other

Total

Short-term advances to suppliers from related
parties (Detalls stated in Note Vll.1)

8,205,680,266 9,526,789,245

'131,617,496

8.07 4,062,770

7 ,917 ,172
9,518,872,073

Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

25 ,97 1 ,260 ,268
21.261,594,839

17 ,409 ,81 4 ,008

13,003,806,049

10,412,427,516

13,783,807,403

8,936,478,335

8,s48,827,170

5 ,41 4 .77 5 ,233
58,777,229,756

8,673,591,895

21,26'1,594,839

17,409,874,008

14,503,806,049

14,687,306,426

13,783,807,403

8,936,478,335

8,548,827,170

5,714,775,233

68,449,413,015

l
*

183,520,080,577 18't,969,474,373

48,480,383,278 30,662,102,929

Opening balance

VND

38,472.872,158 38,472,872,158

13,000,000,000

10,813,710,792

4,000,000,000

3,695,789,577

13,325,406,328

10,813,710,792

83,307,778,855 69,759,438,339

66,906,203,325 53,047,831,094

3,695,789,577

16 ,777 ,065 ,812

20

3. SHORT.TERM AOVANCES TO SUPPLIERS
Closing balance

VND



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstnct, Ha Not

FORMB09-DN
Issued under Circular No. 200i2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 Decembet 2014 of the Ministry of Fanance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integnlpai of and shoutd be rcad in conjunction wilh the accompenying separate financial statemenl

V. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET

(coNTTNUED)

4. LOAN RECEIVABLE
Closing balance

VND

opening balance

VND

a, Short-term loans receivables

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation
Licogi Joint Stock Company (i)

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Co., LTD (ii)

Total

b. Long-term loans receivables

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Co., LTD (iii)

Total

Loan receivables from related parties

(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

196,903,623,180 196,903,623,'.l80

14,010,000,000 3,860,000,000

14,010,000,000 3,860,000,000

1,600,000,000

195,303,623,180

1,600,000,000

195,303,623,180

(D

2't 0,913,623,180 200,763,623,180

I

(iD

(iii)

Loan under contract No. O5/2o17IL|COG|-LMDN dated April 25, 2017, loan amount is VND
1,600,OOO,OOO, term of contract is 12 months, floating loan interest rate according to commercial bank

interest rate from time to time, loan security is receivable debt of package TB02 - Bac Ha Hydropower
project from Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint slock company according to tripartite payment

commitment No. 1904D017 ILICOGI/LMDN/CKDA dated April 19, 2017.

According to the loan appendix dated April 26,2020, the debt amount and principal repayment period

are extended from April26,2O2o until the payment is deducted. lnterest rate is 9.s%/year.

Loan under the principle contract No.o4I2o17IHDWLICOGI-NOOT dated March 30, 2017, lhe
maximum loan amount is vND 351,802,000,000, the loan term is calculated from the disbursement
date to August 15, 2019. The borrower is to implement the Thinh Liet New urban Area project, Hoang

Mai Districi Hanoi City. The inlerest rate for the loan term is variable, the interest rate for restructuring-

the repayment term ii 1 1O% of the interest rate for the loan term, the overdue interest rate is 150% of

the interest rate forthe loan term. The loan is unsecured.

According to the loan contract appendix dated December 28, 2023, the debt amount and the principal

repaymeit period are extended for 12 months from Januay15, 2024. lnterest rate is 16%/year.

Loans under the loan support contract, loan term is 24 months from the disbursement date. The

borrowing unit is to serve regular oPerating expenses and temporary housing rental support costs in

2023 for-households in Tuong Mai ward, Thinh Liet ward to implement the Thinh Liet New urban Area

Project. The capital support fee is lo/olyear. The loan is unsecured.

21



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No 491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstrict, Ha Noi

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014,rTT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral patt ol and should be rcad in conjunction wilh the accompanying separate financial statement

INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET
(coNTTNUED)

5. OTHERS SHORT-TERM RECEIVABLES
Opening balance

VND

Receivable related to equitisation

Receivable related to dividends and profits received

Receivable from employees

Advance

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company
Limiled (i)

Receivables from Dung Quat Shipbuilding lndustry
Factory
Receivable from Thinh Liet Urban Area Project
Management Board (ii)

Other

Total

25,493,403,949 25,493,403,949

113,142,448,907 72,992,608,004

51.165,767.792 46,664,013,566 4
432,503,351,082 354,857,620,909

o

3,628,215,586

3,857 ,797,786
2,672,948,504

23,305,093,821

209,237,674,737

3,628,215,586

2,794,626,900

2,778,279,854

23,596,631,075
'176,909,841,975

+

Loan receivables are related parties
(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

226,450,729,717 195,775,267,043

Receivables related to the handover of the Thinh Liet New Urban Area project, advances made by the
Corporation to implement the prolect and interest receivable from contracts that the Corporation lent to
this Company.

The total value of the interest expense receivable accumulated up to January 1, 2024 is VND 72.99
billion. During the year, the Corporation capitalized VND 40.15 billion of interest from loan contracts for
production and business purposes or for projects into other short-term receivables. As at December
31 , 2024, the total value of this interest expense receivable is VND 1 13.14 billion.

l

\(i)

(ii)

22

Closing balance

VND
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G 1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

daled 22 De@mbet 2014 of the Ministry of FinanceBac Ward. Thanh Xuan District, Ha Noi

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes arc an integat patl of and should be read in conjunction wnh the accomPanying separate linancial statement

V. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET
(coNflNUED)

IO. PREPAYMENTS
Closing balance

VND

a. Current
Tools and dies issued for consumption

Total

b. Non-current
Repair and renovation costs

Total

11. LONG.TERM CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Head office and Office for rent at Lot E7, Pham Hung

Skeet (i)

Licogi office building and employee housing project

Others

Total

(i)

9,671,801,536 9,671,801,536

4.491.660

4.491.660

503.213.'148

503_213.148

Closing balance

VND

913.40'1.468

Opening balance

VND
C

583,545,455

99,000,000

583,545,455

99,000,000
't

10,354,346,991 '10,354,346,99',1

The project was approved by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Architecture for the overall site
planning design and construction design plan. Additionally, an official document introducing the
iocation of Loi E6 - ptram Hung (8,450 m') was issued for the Corporation to implement the project

dated 3 January,2007.

The Licogi Corporation - Parent Company placed a land deposit of 8,450,000,000 VND at a rate of
1,000,000 VND/m': for Lot E6 - Pham Hung, according to Official Letter No. 2618/KH&9T€T dated 13

December,2006.

At 1O August, 2007, the Hanoi Department ol Planning and Architecture adjusted and relocated the
project siie from Lot E6 to Lot E7 (approximately 6,500 m'?) This adjustment was approved by the
Hanoi people,s Committee for the development of an office headquarters project in the Cau Giay New

Urban Area, as outlined in Decision No. 1987/QO-UBND dated 11 November,2008.

on July 10, 2023, the Hanoi People's committee issued Notice No. 320/TB-VP regarding the results of
the inspection and review of non-budget investment prolects that have been delayed in implementation

in CAu GiAy District. Accordingly, the City People's Committee decided to suspend the previously

approved investmenl project contents for the mentioned land lots in order to proceed with investment
poiicy decisions, Iand ailocation, and land lease in accordance with the current laws on bidding,
investment, and land management.

On February 28, 2024,lhe Hanoi People's Committee issued Notice No. 78/TB-VP regardang the report
and proposed solutions for unresolved issues relaled to 20 investment projects that have not been
allocatei or leased by the State in the Headquarters Area of General Corporations within the CAu Gi5y
New Urban Area, Hanoi. Accordingly, the City People's Committee agreed on the proposed plan to
carry out procedures to terminate the implementation of Decision No. 1987/QD-UBND dated
November 11, 2008, in order to proceed with the land recovery process as a basis for organizing land
use rights auctions in accordance with land laws. Additionally, the Department of Finance was
assigned to take the lead and provide recommendations to the City People's Committee on resolving
the rights and interests of relevant entities.

As at now, the Corporation is still working with relevant authorities to complete the necessary legal
procedures and recover the expenses it has incurred.

26

Opening balance
VND

26.637 .347

26.637.347

913.401 .468
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G'1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014,rfT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of FinanceBac Ward, Thanh Xuan Distnct, Ha Noi

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTI NUED)

,I8. ACCRUEO EXPENSES
Closing balance

VND

Opening balance

VND

lnlerest expense

Accrued costs for construction Pro.iects

lncluding:

- Suoi Chan 2 Hydropower Proiecl

- National University Project

- Project 20 Cong Hoa

- Ban Chat Hydroeleclric Project

- Hoa Phat Dung Quat lndustial Complex Proiect

Other
Total

Accrued expenses from related parties

(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

a. Current payables

Surplus assets pending resolution

Union funds

Social insurance, Health insurance

Unemployment insurance

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Company No 9
Dakdrinh Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Thanh Binh Limited Company

Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member
Company Limited (i)

Xuan Cau lnvestment Joint Stock Company (lnterest

expense)
Other

Total

b. Non-current payables

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading

Company Limited (ii)

Total

Others payables from related parties

(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

238,300,968,234 312,162,282,793

176,903,337,435 152,981,953,570

161 ,168,883,690

46,536,860,740

26,794,598,660

4,704,207,944

6,823,705,099

7.343,716,979

870,632,058

30,595,223,804

238,412,560,386

46,536,860,740

26,794,598,660

4,704,207,944

6.823.705,099

7,343,716,979

870,632,058

27 ,212,861 ,667

1l
0Opening balance

VND

68,714,425

1,543,652,636

1't,243,942,734

716,960,648

8,932,093,079

1.377.818.141

2,500,000,000

24,8',t6,679,766

68,714,425

1,422,437,682

1 I ,372 ,032 ,667

568,752,856

8,995,046,146

1 ,377,818,141

2,500,000,000

25,254,016,850

2,356,712,329 794,109,590

5.227.594,407 3,748,351,924

58,784,168,165 s6,101,280,281

60,000,000,000 60,000,000,000

60,000,000,000 60,000,000,000

95,242,000,204 94,562,630,722

These noles arc an integtal pad of and shoutd be Ead in conjunction with the accompanying separale financial statement

V. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET

(coNTTNUED)

,I9. OTHER PAYABLES
Closing balance

VND
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G'1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan District, Ha Nor

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

v.

22

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integnl parl of and shoulcl be read in conjunction with the accompanying sepaEte financial slatement

INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET
(coNTTNUED)

OWNER'S EQUITY

a. Movement in owner's equity

TotalOwner's
contributed

capital
VND VND

Prior year's opening balance as
previously reported
Profit for the year

Distribution of bonus and welfare
fund

Opening balance

Protlt for the year

Closing balance

b. Details of owner's equity

State Capital lnvestment

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment
and Trading Company Limited
Gia Cuong lnvestement Company
Limited
Other shareholders

Total

900,000,000,000 (366,326,675,735) 533,673,324,265

900,000,000,000

900,000,000,000 (355,868,682,015) s44,131,3r 7,98s

6,129,201,309

(1,000,000,000)

1361 ,197 ,47 4,4261

5,328,792,41',1

538,802,525,574

5 ,328 ,792 ,41 1

7

Closing balance Opening balance

JG

!t-
r1
:cRatio Value Ratio Value

40.710h

35.00%

19.240k

5.05%

40.710k

35.00%

19.240k

5.05%

----1q9:!. --199J!!p99p99- -----1992!. --l!9!!9,999J99-

c. Shares

Closing balance

Shares

Number of shares registered for issuance

Ordinary shares

Number of shares outstanding

Ordinary shares

Par value of outstanding shares: 10,000 VND/share

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

90,000,000

40

Retained
earn ings

VND

6,129,201,309

(1,000,000,000)

366,406,910,000

315,000,000,000

173,128,880,000

45,464,210,O00

366,406,910,000

315,000,000,000

173,128,880,000

45,464,210,000

Opening balance

Shares



LICOGI CORPOR.ATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 December 20'14 of the Ministry of Finance
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drslrict, Ha Noi

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integal paft of and should be read in conjunclion whh the accompanying separale financial slatement

VI. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET

1, REVENUE FROM GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENOERED

Current year
VND

Sales of merchandise and services
lncluding:

Sales of goods and construction materials

Sales of services

Sales from construction contracls

Deductions

208,297,078,555 306,521,559,494

Total 208,297,078,555 306,521,5s9,494

Revenue with related parties
(Details in Notes Vll.1)

163,347,704,367 82,234,289,490

2. COST OF GOOOS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED

Current year
VND

Prior year
VND

Prior year
VND

163,264,315,533

1,677,573,680

43,355,189,342

180,618,390,250

1,663,550,027

124,239,619,217

Cost of goods, construction materials

Cost of services provided

Cost of construction contract

Total

3. FINANCIAL INCOME

Deposit interest, loan interest

Dividends distributed proflt

Profit from selling shares of Licogi 14 Joint Stock

Company
Proflt from selling shares of Bac Ha Hydropower Joint

Stock Company
Profit from selling shares of Licogi 18 Joint Stock

Company
Others linancial income

Total

Financial lncome with related parties

(Details stated in Note Vll.1)

162.925,208.278

1 ,306,0'18,563

41 ,591,1 '10,160

205,822,337,001 321,483,165,353

180,619,472,571

2,378,473,814

138,485,218,968

2.,

T'
H

]A

T

,1

Current year
VND

Prior year
VNO

34,397,910,266

84,392,035,786

4,565,450,000

21 ,424,000

2,955,780,000

2,217,510

36,273,569,226

98,439,733,200

38,268,007,270

126,334,817,562 172,981,309,696

1'15,654,485,1'10 128,644,975,938
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstnct. Ha Nor

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 ofthe Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEO)
These notes are an integnt patl of and shoutd be rcad in conjunclion v/hh the accompanying separate financial stalemenl

VI. INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET

(coNTTNUED)

4. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Current year
VND

Prior year
VND

lnterest expenses

Provision/Reversal of long-term investment losses

Loss from selling shares of Licogi '13 Joint Stock

Company
Other financial expenses

Total

Financial expenses with related parties

(Details stated in Note vll.l)

5. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Expense of office supplies

Management staff expense

Fixed asset depreciation exPense

Taxes, fees, charges

Provision

Expenses of hired services

Other expenses in cash

Total

5. OTHER INCOME

Sale, disposal of fixed assets
Other

Total

7. OTHER EXPENSES

Penalties

Depreciation of assets inactive

Other

Total

10,698,559 87,591,701

98,487,903,595 113,096,178,070

38.676,382,0'15 39,412,403,752

Current year
VND

Prior year
VND

87,320,891,385

6,294,313,651

4,862,000,000

100,028,381 ,433

12,980,204,936

430,644,616

16,691,962,939

1,174,600,059

856,8'18,024

(2,070,000,000)

2,604,,t43,153

1,578,028,977

650,512,251

17 ,261 ,045,417
1,'173,092,946

855,771,778

1,189,467,766

7,070,',I69,183

2.531,894,088

/\

1

,.it

21,266,497,768 30,731,953,429

Current year
VND

Prior year
VND

4.908,782,725
1,406,009,824

2.524,669,598

6,314,792,549 2,524,669,598

Current year
VND

Prior year
VND

116,134,693

9,91 1,308,960

13,714,238

282,660,530

10,304,380,097

10,041,157,891 10,587,040,627
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.49'l Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Distnct Ha Nor

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014ffT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 ofthe Ministry of Finance

vt

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an idtegnt pad of and shoutd be read in conjunction with the accofipanying separate financial statement

INFORMATION SUPPLEMENTING THE ITEMS IN THE SEPARATE OF BALANCE SHEET
(coNTTNUED)

8. CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current year

VND
Prior year

VND

Accounting profit before tax

Adjustment for taxable income

Plus: Non-deductible expenses

- Controlled interest expense due to related pafty

- Other non-deductible expenses

- Unpaid salary expenses until yealy tax settlement

Less: Tax-exempt income

- Profts of Subsidiaries and Associares

Carry fonrrard losses incuned in previous years

Assessable income
Carry fonrvard losses incuned in previous years

Taxable income
Tax rate

Current CIT expense for the year

5,328,792,411 6,129,201,309

(32,068,925,862) (4s,161,468,996)

I BASIC EARNINGS(LOSSES) PER SHARE

According to Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 30 "Earnings per Share," if a company prepares

both seprrate flnancial statements and consolidated financial statements, it is only required to Present
earnings per share information in accordance with this standard in the consolidated financial

statements.

PRODUCTION COST BY NATURE10

Current year
VND

Prior year
VND

46,994,317,513

30,860,757,386

10,028,178,101

6,105,382,026

84,392,035,786

84.392,035,786

20Yo

47,'149,062,895

36,562,022,268

10,587,040,627

20Yo

Cost of raw materials, materials

Labour expenses

Fixed asset depreciation expenses

Cost of hired services

Other expenses in cash

Total

3.422,843,507

26,429,858,998

12,643,048,587

125,434,',t 13,7 56

3,207 ,417 ,585

74,044,131,495 171 ,137 ,282,433

43

98,439,733,200

98,439,733,200

s,029,249,491

17,436,505,861
'11,562,606,904

38,314,934,783

1,700,834,456



LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstflct. Ha Noi

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 2OO|2O1 4m -BTC

dated 22 Oecember 2014 ol the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are ah integal pad of and should be read in conjunction whh the accompahying separate financial statemenl

VII. OTHER INFORMATION

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

List of related parties with significant transactions and balances for the year:

Related party

Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint Stock Company

Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint Stock Company

Licogi Consulting Joint Stock Company

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock Company Nog

Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock Company

Licogi 10 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 10.6 One Member Company Limited

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Foundation Engineering and Construction 20 Joint Stock Company

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member Company Limited

Licogi General lmport Export One Member Company Limited

Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Licogi 14 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company

Met Nam MIK GROUP Joint Stock Company

Current year
VND

Relationshi

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Level 02 subsidiary

Subsadiary Company

Subsadiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company

Associated Company

Associated Company

Associated Company

Realated Company

Prior year

VND

Vt

\
During the year, the Company entered into the following significant transactions with its related
parties:

Sales
Mechanized Construction and Installation Joint Stock

Licogi 10.6 One Member Company Limited

Viet Nam MIK GROUP Joint Stock Company

Licogi General lmport Export One Member Company

Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Purchases

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 10 Joint Stock ComPanY

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Licogi 10.6 One Member Company Limited

163.347.704.367

68.'183.706.580

51.005.069.611

27.178.357.234

12.251.589.020

4.417 .550.644

144.95'1.960

166.479.318

103.592.s52.011

97.567.046.222

640.867.238

218.181.816

5.166.456.735

82.234.285.490

81 .513.732.000

50.399.911

606.146.342

64.01',1.237

176.372.842.745

17 1 .416 .07 4 .647

1.525.877.335

3.430.890.763
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LICOGI CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Trai Street, Thanh Xuan
Bac Ward, Thanh Xuan Drstnct, Ha Noi

FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014[T-BTC

daled 22 Oec€mbet 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integral pai of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying sepante financial statehent

v[. oTHER TNFORMATION (CONTINUED)

,I. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company entered into the following significant transactions with its related
parties (Continued):

Current year

VND

Prior year
VND

Loan interest
Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Water Electrical System and Machinery Installation

Licoqi Joint Stock Company
Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Dividends, profits shared

Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint Stock Company

Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Licogi 14 Joint Stock Company

Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Stock Company
Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Company No I
Licogi Consulting Joint Stock Company

lnterest expenses

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading

Company Limited
Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Companv No I
Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member

Company Limited
Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Stock Company
Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Stock Company
Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Licogi General lmport Export One lVlember Company

Limited

33,/170,089,574

32,327,832,762

929,773,476

212,483,336

82,184,395,s36

52,458,430,000

24,357,284,700

2,853,005,000

2,141,395,200

374,280,636

38,676,382,015

23,148,514,186

5,597,002,132

4,351,759,604

3,865,185,541

9?8,777 ,000

544,486,018

240,657,534

32,483,367,738

31 .344,231 ,847

927,233,111

211,902,780

95,'161,608,200

74,546,190,000

1 8,945,488,100

2,141,395,200

384,534,900

144,000,000

39,412,403,7 52

20,093,070,588

8,273,888,800

5,779,028,r 58

4,909,486,470

173,390,000

183,539,726

..2

,,(

,.0

:h
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes aE an integGt pan ol and shoukl be ftad in conjunclion with the accompanying sepatute linancial slatement

v . oTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Significant related party balances as at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND

Short-term trade receivables

Foundation Engineering and Construction 20 Joint Stock

Vlet Nam MIK GROUP Joint Stock Company

Bac Ha Hydropower Joint Stock Company

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Licogi General lmport Export One Member Company

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Licogi 10.6 One Member Company Limited

Short-term advances to suppliers

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation

Licogi Joinl Stock Company
Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Stock Company
Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi '19 Joint Stock Company

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Licogi 10.6 One Member Company Limited

Short-term loan receivables
Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation

Licogi Joint Stock Company
Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Long-term loan receivables

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Total other receivables

Receivable related to equitisation

Water Electrical System and Machinery Installation

Licogi Joint Stock Company
Licogi 19 Joint Stock Company

Receivable related to dividends and profits received

Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock Company

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Jolnt Stock

Company No I
Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Company No 10

48.480.383.278

13.783.807.403

25.97',t.260.268

4.804.043.818

1.667 .794.557

1 .381.840.1 56

427.246.063

180.561 .300

105.873.178

95.723.87 5

62.232.660

66,906,203,325

38,472,872,158

13,000,000,000

10.813.710,792

3,695,789,577

65,458,567

858,372,231

't 96,903,623,180

1,600,000,000

195,303,623,180

14,010,000,000
'14,010,000,000

226,450,729,717

3,6?8,215,586

3,916,293

3,624,299,293

2,207,520,000

758,815,536

30.662.102.929

13.783.807.403

8.673.591.895

4.804.043.818

1 .495.849.719
't .381 .840.156

427.246.063

95.723.875

s3,047,83'1,094

38,472,872,158

10,813,710,792

3,695,789,577

65,458,567

'196,903,623,180

1,600,000,000

1 95,303,623,180

3,860,000,000

3,860,000,000

195,775,267,043

3,628,215,586
3,916,293

3,624,299,293

2,794,626,900

2.207,520,000

384,534,900

r17

ott
TI

,!lt

t6

202,572,000202,s72,000
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes ate an integal paft of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accompanying sepaate financial statement

vI. oTHER TNFORMATION (CONTTNUED)

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Significant related party balances as at the balance sheet date were as follows (Continued):

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND

Advances receivable from related parties

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi l9 Joint Stock Company

Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock Company

Other receivables
Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Foundation Engineering and Construction 20 Joint Stock

Company

Short-term trade payables

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Foundation Engineering and Construction 20 Joint Stock

Company
Licogi 10 Joint Stock Company

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Company No 9
Licogi Quang Ngai Joint Stock Company

Licogi Consulting Joint Stock Company

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Short-term advances from customers

Licogi Housing and Urban Development Company

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Company Nog
Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member

Company Limited
Licogi 10.6 One Member Company Limited

Accrued expenses

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading

Company Limited
Water Electncal System and Machinery lnstallation

Foundation Engineering and Construction 20 Joint Stock

Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint Stock Company

Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 15 Joint Stock Company

Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member

Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Company No 9
Licogi 10 Joint Stock Company

8,243J92382 12,476,918,235

10,814,210,438 10,294,210,438

10,201,578,445

7,464,190,171

2,015,426,67I
713,413,162

8,548,434

212,620,935,686

209.237,674,737

3,383,260,949

1 ,609,145,615

1 .197,675,31 1

39,208,686

17 5,228,329,'.t04

72,000,000,000

46,162,167,812

37 ,081 ,161,292

19,985,000,000

176,903,337,435

1 17,555,987,831

I,556,734,7 42

3,384,919,688

826,107,961

998,61 3,914

70,541,437,456

31 ,134,314,283

13,889,964,888

1,609,145,615
'1 ,197,675,31 1

39,208,686

87,053,873,892

47,681,291,600

39,372,582,292

152,981,953,570

94,407,473,645

30,541,489,500

14,796,165,969

6,224,471,604

3,384,919,688

1 ,7 44,634J82
1 ,639,481 ,152

243,317 ,830

47

68,376,354,393

32.171 .117 .082

14,301,804,379

30,541,489,500

14,796,165,969

9,059,321,633

6,534,416,695

1,802,943,342

713,413,162

8,548,434

180,293,102,924

176,909,841 ,975

3,383,260,949

u
HI
IO

;.

243,317,830
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lssued under Circular No. 200/2014iTT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes are an integnl pan of and should be rcad in conjunction with the accornpanying separate linancial statement

v[. oTHER TNFORMATTON (CONTINUED)

1. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Significant related party balances as at the balance sheet date were as follows (Continued):

Closing balance Opening balance

VND VND

Others payablss

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading

Company Limited
Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member

Company Limited
Mechanized Construction and lnstallation Joint Stock

Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Stock Company
Licogi General lmport Export One Member Company
Limited
Licogi '17 Joint Stock Company

Short-term loans and obligations under finance leases

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Trading

Company Limited
Dong Anh Licogi Mechanical Joint Stock Company

Licogi 2 lnvestment And Construction One Member
Company Limited
Dong Anh lnvestment and Construction Materials Joint

Stock Company
Licogi General lmport Export One Member Company
Limited
Licogi 17 Joint Stock Company

Long-term loans and obligations under finance leases

Khu Dong Real Estate lnvestment and Tradang

Company Limited

9s,242,000,204

60,000,000,000

24,816,679,766

8,932,093,079

936,'195,000

424,197,260

132,835,099

152,874,809,687

109,322,197,156

17,681 ,214,800

3,000,000,000

1.595,723,870

203,675,000,000

203,675,000,000

94,552,630,722

60,000,000,000

25 ,254 ,016 ,850

8,995,046,146
'130,028,000

183,539,726

32,164,070,414

1 1,641,339,779

12,500,000,000

3,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

't 92,320,000,000

192,320,000,000

t'
1i|ll

IE'
./l
,
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9,762,588,389

125,442,607,349
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Building G1, No.491 Nguyen Traj Street, Thanh Xuan
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FORMB09-DN
lssued under Circular No. 200/2014IrT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
These notes arc an integral paft of and shoud be read in conjunction with the accompanying separale financial statement

vlt oTHER tNFORMAT|ON (CONTTNUED)

,t. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Current year

VND

Prior year

VND

lncome of the Board of the Directors

1. Mr. Oinh Viet Tung

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai

3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hop

4. Mr. Nguyen Danh Quan

5. Mr. Ung Tien Do

6. Mr. Nguyen Truong Son

lncome of the Board of Management

1. Mr. Vu Nguyen Vu

2. Mr. Phan Thanh Hai

3. Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hop

4. Mr. Nguyen Anh Dung

lncome of The Board of Supervisory

1 Mr Phan Hai Trieu

2. Mrs. Duong Thi Phuong

3. Mrs. Kieu Bich Hoa

Total

1,381,936,000 1,413,848,465

133,000,000

376,032,000

1 18,548,000

356,028,000

356,028,000

42,300,000

974,769,067

228,948,364

139,743,636

263,680,000

342,397,067

502,028,000

356,028,000

73,000,000

73,000,000

122,000,000

430,499,668

380,864,490

380,864,490

99,619,818

1,0'11,690,542

382,499,668

363,299,696

265,891 ,178

508,473,581

358,464,490

75,009,091

75,000,000

,"\
\t

);I2,858,733,067 2,934,012,589

2. COMMITMENT TO OPERATIONAL LEASE

The Corporation signed a contract with the Hanoi Department of Land and Housing under land lease
contract No. 146-2003/DCND-HDDTTN at G1 building, Nguyen Trai street, Thanh Xuan Bac ward,
Thanh Xuan district, Hanoi for the purpose of using it as an office and production management office
for 30 years from 01 January, 2003. The leased land area is 1,928 m2. According to this contract, the
Corporation must pay land rent until the contract expires according to current regulations of the State.

3. CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

According to the first instance judgment No. 30/2024IKDTM-ST dated July 12,2024 of the People's
Court of Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City, it is decided that:

Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of
the Corporation) is obliged to repay the debt to the Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural
Development under Credit Contract No. 1480 1AV20120c/41/HDTD dated June 29,2012 and 10

debt receipts with a total amount of VND 7,583,146,207, of which the principal is VND
4,900,956,630, interest is VND 2,682,189,577. The Company continues to bear interest at the rate
ol 4.S6oklyeat from the day following the date of the first instance trial (July 12, 2024) until the
above debt is fully paid to the Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development.

49

The income, remuneration and allowances of the Board of Directors, the Board of Management,
and the Board of Supervision during the year are as follows:
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3. CONTTNGENTLTABTLTTTES(CONTTNUEO)

- Accept the lawsuit request of the Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development of Vietnam to force
LICOGI Corporation - JSC to perform the debt guarantee obligation on behalf of LICOGI Electricity
and Water lnstallation Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary of the Corporation) for the entire principal

and interest debt under Credit Contract No. '1480 |-AV201200441|HDTD dated June 29, 2012 in
case Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock Company (a

subsidiary of the Corporation) fails to fully perform its debt repayment obligation to the Bank under
authorization No. 14o"/TCT-KTTC dated April 1, 2012 of LICOGI Corporation - JSC. Vietnam Bank
for Agriculture and Rural Development has the right to request competent enforcement agencies to
handle assets under the ownership and legal use rights of LICOGI Corporation - JSC in accordance
with the provisions of law to recover debt if the Corporation violates its guarantee obligations.

- Regarding court fees: Water Electrical System and Machinery lnstallation LICOGI Joint Stock
Company must pay VND 115,583,146 in first-instance commercial court fees. Refund to the
Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development the advance court fee of VND 57,600,000
paid in the receipt of advance court fees and court fees No. 00125387 dated October 23,2023 of
the Thanh Xuan District Civil Judgment Enforcement Office.

According to the appeal judgment No. 01/2025IKDTM-PT dated January 3, 2025 ofthe People's Court
of Hanoi City, it is decided that:

- Uphold the first instance commercial judgment No. 30/2024IKDTM-ST dated July 12,2024 ol the
People's Court of Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City.

- Regarding court fees: LICOGI Corporation - JSC must pay 2,000,000 VND in apPeal court fees
deducted from the amount paid according to Receipt No. 36313 dated July 30, 2024 at the Thanh
Xuan District Civil Judgment Enforcement Oftice, Hanoi City.

On March 25,2025, the Corporation submitted a request for review of the cassation procedure for the
above.iudgments of flrst instance and appeal to the Chief Justice of the High People's Court in Hanoi

and the Chief Prosecutor of the High People's Procuracy in Hanoi. Accordingly, the Corporation did not

set aside a provision for this potential debt in its separate financial statements because it believed that
the Corporation would not incur an obligation to guarante€ debt repayment on behalf of LICOGI

Electricity and Water lnstallation Joint Stock Company (Subsidiary).

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
These noles are an integral pad of and should be read in coniunction with the accompanying separate financial statement

v[. oTHER TNFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There have been no signiflcant events occurring after 31 December 2024 which would require

adjustments or disclosures to be made in the separate financial state

-::='-

Le Thi Thanh Noi
Chief Accountant

nh Hai
chief Executive Officer
March 31,2025
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Dang Thu Oanh
Preparer

50


















































